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Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 51, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 20 years
of experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 31, is Managing Director
of the Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the
University of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts,
majoring in Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004,
Mr. Shum has pursued a career in finance and accountancy
in an international accounting firm. He is the son of Shum Siu
Hung.

Cai Xikun, aged 62, had over 40 years’ industrial experience
and experience in management and control of manufacturing
businesses. Mr. Cai began his career in the manufacturing
industry in Mainland China in the early 1970s on the opening
up of the Chinese economy. In the late 1980s Mr. Cai took up
duties at the top management level in Guangdong Wan Jia Le
LPG Equipment Company Limited, a large scale state-owned
enterprises in the Zhujiang Delta region that was one of the
front runners in the rapid expansion of the manufacturing
industry in the region. This was followed by his chairmanship
of Guangdong Yue Hai Dish Washing Machine Company
Limited, and his position of Deputy General Manager of
Guangdong Huabao Group Limited and General Manager of
Guangdong Huabao Air Conditioning Factory. Mr. Cai joined
the Group in 2003 and is since then Managing Director of
NewOcean Energy (Zhuhai) Company Limited.
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Cen Ziniu, aged 41, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and has been involved in trading businesses in
Hong Kong and China, holding senior managerial positions.
Mr. Cen has extensive experience in dealership management,
business formation and marketing. He is responsible for
market development of the Group and overseas operations.
He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 51, is head of the
Group’s LPG operations in China and worldwide. Mr. Chiu
had over 20 years’ experience in banking and management.
He has been involved in the financing and supervision of
business projects in China since the late 1980’s. During the
last 10 years, Mr. Chiu held senior positions in a number of
businesses in China and was in charge of the management
and control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 47, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over
20 years experience in the investment and real estate field,
working with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and
China. Mr. Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in
charge of the Group’s purchasing and re-export operations.

Wang Jian, aged 30, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a
Master’s Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in
2008, Mr. Wang was engaged by a major bank in Mainland
China and worked in its banking business department.
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Non-executive Director

Wu Hong Cho, aged 64, graduated from the Law School
of the University of Hong Kong and had over 10 years’
experience practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong prior to
leaving private practice. Since joining the commercial sector,
Mr. Wu had held senior positions and was in charge of
corporate financial matter in a number of public companies
in Hong Kong prior to joining the Company as an executive
director in 1998. Mr. Wu was re-designated non-executive
director from July 1, 2006. He is also the company secretary
of the Company and a director of several subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Wu is currently an executive director of
C C Land Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
was an independent non-executive director of Beiren Printing
Machinery Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from 2002 to
2008.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 58. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over
25 years of experience in account, finance and investment
banking profession specialising in equity/debt fund raising,
mergers and acquisition and corporate restructuring before
working with publicly listed companies undertaking corporate
management, planning and strategies development functions.
Mr. Cheung is an independent non-executive director of
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited, Ruyan Group (Holdings)
Ltd. and V.S. International Group Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 51, is a holder of a Master
of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield Institute
of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional engineer
in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is the recipient of the
U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding Project
Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan has taken
up key management positions in engineering and technology
businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping equipment
and control systems, mini-piling, and software and hardware
engineering businesses.

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 54, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and
has over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field.
Since 1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position
in the top management level in banking sector in China,
and has been well connected in the finance and corporate
sectors both in China and overseas. Dr. Xu's expertise ranges
from public listings to project financing, syndicated loan,
debt restructuring and merge and acquisition. He has taken
part in a considerable number of overseas listing of Chinese
enterprises and other major fund raising exercises. Dr. Xu
was an independent non-executive director of EPI (Holdings)
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) from 2006
to 2009.
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On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am delighted to present to our shareholders the
audited financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the period from January 1, 2009
to December 31, 2009.

In 2009, many business owners in economies around the
globe find themselves still recoiling from the impact of the
2008 economic crises, with time and energy tied up in
rescue and damage control. It is therefore remarkable that
our Company has remained unfettered by the turbulance
and uncertainties of the year. Our liquefied petroleum gas
(“LPG”) business was able to continue the pursuit of our
market share expansion under unfavorable market conditions.
In addition, because of the downward adjustment of energy
prices and the low interest environment, the Group was
able to have substantial savings in both its direct cost and
financial expenditure. In 2009, the Group’s sales volume
for the first time surpassed 1,000,000 tons in its history of
LPG operation, and its after tax net earnings also broke
through the HK$100,000,000 mark to reach approximately
HK$112,451,000.

As our shareholders may know, the Group has all along been
reinvesting all its earnings to expand its LPG distribution
network. After 10 years of prudent management, the Group
now becomes the leading distributor of LPG in South China
region. We rank number one in respect of LPG import and
export in the whole of China, and we are the largest LPG
wholesaler in Guangdong.

Whilst we are justifiably elated by our accomplishment, we do
acknowledge that the Group’s LPG development pace could
have been much faster if we had taken a more enterprising
approach. In the coming future, we shall, based on the
foundation that we have already established, penetrate into
LPG markets of higher profit margins. We shall engage in
businesses that involve more advanced LPG applications,
and we shall employ diversified financial products in both
the capital market and the debt market to accelerate our
acquisitions and expansion.
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We have to reiterate that being number one in the Guangdong
LPG industry has never been our ultimate objective. We
will maintain our momentum in creating value for our
shareholders. Our prudency will continue to enable us to
meet market challenges with success; our entrepreneurship
will effectively lead us to capitalize on opportunities and our
dedication and commitment will usher the Group into a new
era in the coming years.

The Company proposes to declare a dividend of HK1.0 cent
per share for 2009.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere

appreciation to all the Group’s employees for their dedicated
work and contribution in the past year.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, April 12, 2010
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1. Summary of Group Performance

The Group achieved an outstanding performance in
2009 notwithstanding the difficult business environment
in the aftermath of the 2008 world financial crisis.

1.1

1.2

Overall Performance

Group total revenue increased to approximately
HK$6,483,119,000, a 5.27% growth compared
with that of approximately HK$6,158,614,000
for the year ended December 31, 2008. Despite
the numerically small growth in revenue, profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2009 surged to
approximately HK$112,451,000, doubling that of
approximately HK$52,911,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2008. On December 9, 2009, the
Company completed a new issue of 192,500,000
shares by way of a top-up placing of shares at
HK$1.00 per share, which generated net proceeds
of approximately HK$188,773,000. The basic
earnings per share for the year 2009, calculated on
the enlarged issued share capital of 1,155,853,374
shares as at December 31, 2009, increased by
35.97% to HK11.53 cents per share compared with
that of HK8.48 cents per share for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

Business Performance

The Group’s sales volume of LPG passed the
million ton milestone to reach about 1,060,000
tons in 2009. It represented an impressive growth
of approximately 33% in comparison with that of
about 795,000 tons in 2008. The LPG price in
2009 went down globally from its historical height
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in 2008. As such, our significant growth in sales
volume generated merely a small increase in
turnover to approximately HK$5,722,622,000 for
LPG business, representing 88.27% of the Group’s
total turnover, but only 0.36% increase compared
with that of approximately HK$5,702,341,000 in
2008.

The turnover contribution of electronics
business, comprising electronics components
and cellular phones, amounted to approximately
HK$760,497,000 representing 11.73% of
the Group’s total turnover and a growth of
66.68% compared with that of approximately
HK$456,273,000 for the electronic business for
year 2008.

The reduction of the LPG portion of the Group’s
total turnover from 92.59% in 2008 to 88.27% in
2009 should not be read as any change of our
business focus. As a matter of fact, the Group had
made use of the global environment of energy price
adjustment to further expand its market coverage
and at the same time enhance the net earnings of
its LPG business.

Apart from the 33% growth in the sales volume,
which stands as a testimony to the Group’s
dedication to pursue LPG expansion, gross
profit contributed by LPG business increased to
approximately HK$358,348,000 in 2009 (2008:
HK$191,947,000), representing 90.65% of the
Group’s total gross profit. A margin improvement
from 3.37% in 2008 to 6.26% in 2009 was
recorded during the period, as the Group was able
to negotiate more favourable purchasing terms
due to the increase in volume and the lowered
LPG price allowed more aggressive pricing for the
Group’s LPG sales. Under a market situation where
the price gap between imported LPG and domestic
LPG was very much narrowed, the Group was able
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1.3

to achieve more effective matching of its purchase
and distribution (i.e. domestic LPG for household
consumption; imported LPG for export, industrial
and auto-gas demand). The trading volume of
imported LPG and domestic LPG both increased
substantially and gross margin was successfully
improved.

In respect of the electronics business, the business
model adopted provided stable gross profit
contribution at approximately HK$36,970,000
(2008: HK$35,449,000) which representing 9.35%
of the Group’s total gross profit.

Operational Performance

The Group’s overall gross margin improved to
6.10% in 2009 from 3.69% in 2008 mainly due to
improvement in unit gross margin and reduction in
unit selling price of the LPG business.

During this period, the Group succeeded in cutting
down its sales and distribution expenses by more
than HK$14,000,000. Amongst the measures
taken, early termination of LPG vessel time charter
contracts was the most effective and the move
reduced significantly the ship rental expenditure. In
the early termination of one contract, full provision
of about HK$15,088,000 for the ship rental deposit
had been made in the interim results. Subsequently
a voluntary settlement was reached for the early
termination of the aforesaid contract with the
Group received a compensation of approximately
HK$10,898,000, thus the full year written-off
amount netted off to approximately HK$4,190,000.

In 2009, administrative expenses increased
moderately by about 9.18% from 2008. The
additional expenditure was mainly incurred in
expanding and streamlining the bottled LPG
business, and included the establishment of our
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1.4

own network for direct distribution of bottled LPG,
the expansion into Maoming market, preparations
for penetration into Hong Kong and Macau markets.
We strongly believe that the implementation of all
these plans will bring about significant business
growth as well as further improvement of our retail
margin.

Financial Performance

Interest rate remained at relatively low level
throughout this period. The Group was able to
enjoy significant savings in its financial expenses
which is one of the key factors contributing to the
substantial increase in our net profit.

With respect to currency exposure, in the first
half of year 2009, since the market expectation of
Renminbi appreciation was not as aggressive as
that in year 2008, there existed very little chance to
apply financial instruments such as direct foreign
exchange forward contracts and non-deliverable
foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce
our exchange cost (in relation to converting RMB
into US$ for payments). Nearly all our purchase
payments for the LPG importation in that period
were made by spot exchange of RMB into US$.
In the second half of year 2009, market sentiment
changed, and these financial activities were
resumed. All in all, the foreign exchange gain (the
major component of the Group’s other incomes)
in 2009 reduced prominently from the exceptional
height in 2008. On the other hand, financial
expenses in relation to these financial activities also
reduced accordingly.

It is also worth noting that the Group has the
honour of being selected as an eligible entity on
the launch of the cross border Renminbi settlement
pilot plan by the Central Government in 2009. We
strongly believe that the high degree of discipline

1.4
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2.

in the running of our LPG business, our continual
growth in import and export volume and the size of
our Renminbi exchange transactions were the key
consideration of the Zhuhai government to include
the Group in the first batch of eligible entities in the
pilot plan, and that also confirmed our standing in
the LPG industry of Zhuhai.

LPG Business

2.1

LPG Market Situation (Guangdong)

Units: "000 tons Bl FIF
China’s total demand REABTERE
Guangdong’s total demand BREFRE

Source: Guangdong Oil and Gas Associations

Units: *000 tons &l T

China’s total import REGENS
Guangdong’s total import BREHENE
China’s total export FEAHNE
Guangdong's total export BERAHOES

Source: China Custom and Excise

During the course of development of the LPG
market in Guangdong, massive foreign investment
had been made to help the establishment of an
efficient supply chain in the province and the
promotion of wider and more advanced applications
of LPG. These investments made Guangdong the
largest LPG market in China. For many years,
Guangdong as a single province out of the 27
provinces in China consumed close to a quarter of
the LPG sold in the country. Besides, Guangdong
has always been ahead of other provinces in
utilizing LPG for environmental protection purposes.
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2009
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EHAR  BERHREE
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70% 1777 68% 2908  72%
100% 675 100% 338 100%
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As the major LPG import sea terminals are located
in Guangdong, the province naturally becomes
a window through which the bulk of imported
LPG, which is of better quality than domestic
LPG, is channeled into China. In recent years,
the infrastructure described above has taken root
in the province and further nurtured Guangdong
to become a collection and distribution centre
of imported LPG, not only serving the domestic
market, but also covering neighbouring areas in the
South China Sea Region.

Units: "000 tons Bl : FH
Guangdong LPG Consumption: BRACRBFRE -
Source of Supply: R -

Refineries inside Guangdong BRENRKEIH
Refineries outside Guangdong BRE MR T
Import #0O

Source: Guangdong Oil and Gas Associations

The 2009 statistics indicated a sharp rise in the
volume of imported LPG and an equally steep
decline in the volume of domestic LPG supplied by
refineries outside Guangdong. These changes were
driven mostly by the consumer’s preference under
the situation that the price differential between
imported and domestic LPG has remained small for
most of the year 2009.

In general, LPG household users are sensitive to
price and quality while industrial users (including
auto-gas users) are very demanding on quality, but
less sensitive to price.
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2.2

With respect to household users, when the prices
of imported LPG and domestic LPG were more or
less at the same level, the demand for imported
LPG obviously increased, and LPG supplied by
refineries inside Guangdong, which is inferior to
imported LPG but still has acceptable quality, was
preferred to LPG supplied by refineries outside
Guangdong, which is of inconsistent quality.

With respect to industrial users (including auto-
gas users), as different applications of LPG would
require LPG of different specifications and domestic
LPG is generally unable to meet with all quality
requirements at the same time, imported LPG
becomes a necessity. We estimate that the current
industrial demand in Guangdong is about 1 million
tons. In line with the increasing application of LPG
as feedstock for petrochemical plants and auto-gas
application spreading from Guangzhou into other
cities of Guangdong, the demand of imported LPG
will increase very rapidly.

We, as a leading LPG supplier in Guangdong,
constantly monitor market changes and make
corresponding adjustments to our buying and
selling strategies.

Overall Business Situation

The Group’s LPG purchase reached about
1,060,000 tons in 2009, an increase of about 33%
in comparison with that of about 795,000 tons in
2008.

With respect to imported LPG, for the second
successive year, our Zhuhai Terminal maintained
its leading position in respect of LPG import and
export in China. In 2009, the terminal imported
about 800,000 tons (about 28% of Guangdong’s
import) and exported about 264,000 tons (about
46% of Guangdong’s export).
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£ 7E 2009 F 18 E %) 262,000 Wi (=
T% 22008 FHIRMMS) o

With respect to domestic LPG, Zhuhai NewOcean
Energy Technology Co. Ltd. (the purchase centre
of our domestic LPG) increased substantially the
volume of purchase to about 262,000 tons in 2009
(almost doubling that in 2008).

The Group’s Purchase Categories SERRANEERRAE 2009 2008
Term contract — ship import cargo AR - EOkE 383,000 tons A 36% 366,000 tons ME 46%
Spot purchase — ship import cargo FERREE — #OME 415,000 tons WA 39% 296,000 tons ME 37%
Import Volume ENRBHE 798,000 tons W 75% 662,000 tons M 83%
Domestic purchase volume — spot BEREHE - Y 262,000 tons W 25% 133,000 tons MA 17%
The Group’s total purchase SEABRE 1,060,000 tons W 100% 795,000 tons MA 100%
The Group’s Sales Categories SERENF 2009 2008
Imported LPG: RitwER :
Export — term contract HA - RHAR 186,000 tons M 23% 238,000 tons M 36%
Export — spot sales H0 - BEEE 78,000 tons ME 10% 21,000 tons Mg 3%
Export Total #HneE 264,000 tons i 33% 259,000 tons WA 39%
Domestic sales — term contract BREE - RASHA 178,000 tons MA 22% 101,000 tons MA 15%
Domestic sales — spot BIAEE — B 292,000 tons MA 37% 137,000 tons M 21%
Domestic sales — joint purchase BRHE - BaFRET 0 tons A 0% 103,000 tons MA 16%
Domestic sales — in bottle for BREE - B

industrial use (I%RP) 64,000 tons WA 8% 62,000 tons A 9%
Domestic Sales Total BARBES 534,000 tons W 67% 403,000 tons MA 61%
Imported LPG Distribution Total ENRRNER 798,000 tons Wi 100% 662,000 tons MA 100%
Domestic LPG: HERNE:
Bottled LPG BERILE 124,000 tons 1A 47% 103,000 tons M& 77%
Domestic LPG bulk selling BHEHE 138,000 tons M 53% 30,000 tons M 23%
Domestic LPG Distribution Total HERMNEER 262,000 tons W 100% 133,000 tons MA 100%
The Group’s total LPG sales SORERNES 795,000 tons M@

1,060,000 tons M



BIRE 7 wm Mo

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1&8REBABR AR

2.3

Imported LPG Distribution

In 2009, overall international LPG prices came
down substantially from its historical height in
2008. In addition, extra supply, sometimes at the
millions-ton level, was put onto the international
market (in particular, by Qatar) with little choice of
buyers other than China. Therefore, offer prices
in the spot market would sometimes dip below
term contracts prices which generally follow
the prices dictated by Saudi Aramco. In view of
such situation, the Group’s purchases conducted
through term contracts were arranged so as to
have matching sales contracts in approximately
equal volumes, and to set pricing formulas of both
sides to link with the same LPG index to minimize
price fluctuation risks. The volume purchased under
term contract in 2009 amounted to about 383,000
tons which closely matched the about 364,000 tons
of sales under term contracts (including export and
domestic sales) made during the period.

For spot purchase and sales, we pre-sold most
of the cargoes immediately after the purchase
price was fixed and margin was secured. The spot
purchase quantity during the period increased to
about 415,000 tons. This quantity was distributed
partly to meet the export demand growth and
partly for distribution to second class terminals
and bottling plants in Guangdong. Sales under
joint purchase arrangement were terminated at the
end of 2008, but business with the joint purchase
partners has continued and was transacted on spot
basis.
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2.4

For the expansion of imported LPG distribution,
we have all along been putting our focus on
industrial customers that have captive demand on
good quality imported LPG, which brings to us
much higher profit margin. In 2009, we succeeded
in increasing our sales to industrial customers
by about 75,000 tons (grouped under domestic
sales — term contract), and a number of term
contracts that involve sizable demand were in the
pipeline. For selling to industrial customers, credit
term ranging from 90 days to 120 days has to be
granted as a market practice. The sales expansion
in this respect indeed caused an increase of trade
account receivables in our balance sheet and that
means higher credit risk has to be borne. To deal
with this issue, we centralize the approval authority
of credit sales at the senior management level of
the Group. For some customers, bank drafts are
taken as securities or credit insurances are covered
for risk and return justification.

Domestic LPG Distribution (including bottled
LPG distribution)

In 2009, Zhuhai NewOcean Energy Technology
Company Limited (“NewOcean Technology”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Zhuhai as a wholly foreign owned
investment holding company, continued to perform
its role as the purchase centre of the Group for
domestic LPG. NewOcean Technology increased
substantially its purchasing commitment in
domestic LPG in order to secure better volume
discounts. Total purchase increased from about
133,000 tons in 2008 to about 262,000 tons
in 2009. This amount represents purchasing
conducted during the year under a “over buying”
purchasing model, whereby purchases were
made in quantities exceeding the actual stock
requirements of our own bottling plants. The over-
bought stock was then sold on the wholesale

24
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market for a relatively low but secured margin.
In China, the domestic LPG suppliers (i.e. the
refineries) only accept payment in advance or
cash deposit. Our increase in the purchase volume
indeed increased our working capital requirement,
but since the earnings from sales of the excessive
amount to outsiders were more than sufficient
to cover the additional funding costs, taking this
approach in domestic LPG trading is very effective
in lowering the cost of purchase for our bottled
LPG distribution.

The bottled LPG business conducted through
the Group’s 13 bottling plants in Guangdong and
Guangxi province achieved a sales volume of about
188,000 tons in 2009, an increase of about 14%
when compared with that of about 165,000 tons
in 2008. The increase in volume was attributable
to the organic growth of each market and the
completion of Maoming Bottling Plant acquisition in
September 2009.

Commencing from the beginning of the year,
development focus is being put on reducing the
Group’s bottled LPG sales through dealers and
establishing our own direct sales network. The
logistic facilities and manpower in Guangzhou and
Shenzhen were strengthened for the aforesaid
purpose. Direct sales of bottled LPG to both
restaurants and households were increasing
gradually. As the promotion of direct sales of
bottled LPG is a labour intensive process, we are
only aiming at a moderate initial sales growth in
this area. We are however confident that with the
extension of our direct distribution network, sales
of bottled LPG will grow with increasing momentum
in the near future.
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3.

Electronics Business

In 2009, the turnover of the Group’s electronics business
amounted to approximately HK$760,497,000, a growth
of 66.68% in comparison with that of approximately
HK$456,273,000 in 2008. Electronics components
trading contributed a turnover of approximately
HK$349,648,000 which doubled that of approximately
HK$170,605,000 in 2008. The turnover of cellular phone
business grew to approximately HK$410,849,000, an
increase of 43.82% compared with that of approximately
HK$285,668,000 in 2008.

We continued the cooperation with Newtel Corporation
Co. Ltd. (“Newtel”) and adopted the same business
model in selling cellular phones in the Thailand market.
The political uncertainty prevailing in Thailand in 2009
had not caused adverse impact on the cellular phone
business, but consumer sentiment was indeed affected
resulting in a business growth rate lower than expected.
According to Newtel, the growth slow-down only
signified a consolidation of the market and the “WellcoM”
brand remained one of the top four brand names for
cellular phones sales in Thailand.

Business Outlook

The Group’s LPG core business will remain as our key
development direction in the coming future. For the
past years, we put our entire resources in establishing,
expanding and streamlining our LPG distribution
channels. The logistics related establishments within
our development programme have substantially been
completed in 2009. In the coming future, we shall
focus on the strengthening of our earning capability. A
number of new development plans that are LPG retailing
related have been formulated in 2009 and are being
implemented.
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We will penetrate into the bottled LPG markets of
higher profit margin. Hong Kong and Macau have been
identified as the immediate targets. As ground work
for our bottled LPG business in Hong Kong, we have
taken out leases over two pieces of land in Tuen Mun
for the construction of a depot that serves as storage
and distribution centre. In the meantime, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has been processing the
application to the relevant department in the Hong Kong
Government for registration as a Registered Gas Supply
Company. It is expected that bottled LPG distribution in
Hong Kong will commence within the year of 2010. The
development of the Macau market moved much faster.
The distribution of bottled LPG in Macau commenced in
March 2010 after the Group acquired one of the seven
domestic distributors in the region.

The Group is also preparing to enter into the Zhuhai
bottled LPG market. The bottling plant originally situated
within our Zhuhai Terminal had been removed in 2006
to provide space for storage capacity expansion. The
plant is now being re-built on a piece of land adjacent
to the depot area of the terminal with construction work
anticipated to complete by April 2010. The new bottling
plant will serve the Zhuhai bottled LPG market as well
as providing logistic services to our Macau operations.

In 2010, we will employ a diversity of financial products
in both the capital market and debt market to accelerate
our acquisitions and expansions into businesses
that involve more advanced LPG applications. We
are particularly interested in the auto-gas market of
Guangdong where there is ample room for development,
and being the major imported LPG supplier in this
market, our participation in the auto-gas operation will
definitively be synergy creating.
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With regard to our LPG wholesaling business, the
time schedule for two additional berths at the Zhuhai
Terminal has been adjusted so that the construction
work will proceed in coordination with the oil storage
depot construction which was finally approved in August
2009. The addition of two berths at the Zhuhai Terminal
will effectively enhance its annual throughput capacity to
about 1,600,000 tons of LPG with the ability to handle
about 1,000,000 tons of oil products concurrently.

We have confidence that the achievements we made
in 2009 would be a milestone in the Group’s long term
development. Starting from this year, the Group will
enter a new era with much faster growth both in its size
as well as earnings.

Liquidity And Financial Resources

As at December 31, 2009, the net current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$191,116,000 (2008:
HK$19,938,000) and the Group’s bank balances and cash
was approximately HK$194,716,000 (2008: HK$143,756,000).
At the balance sheet date, current ratio was 1.06:1 (2008:
1.01:1), quick ratio was 0.93:1 (2008: 0.94:1), gearing ratio
was 0.76:1 (2008: 0.73:1) which was calculated based on
total liabilities of approximately HK$3,210,225,000 (2008:
HK$1,982,655,000) and total assets of approximately
HK$4,226,442,000 (2008: HK$2,700,263,000).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at
December 31, 2009 and 2008.
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Pledge of Assets

At December 31, 2009, the Group pledged its bank deposits
amounting to approximately HK$1,392,355,000 (2008:
HK$732,199,000) to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group. The bank loans of the Group comprise
of an amount of approximately HK$84,271,000 (2008:
HK$147,198,000) drawn under term loan facilities secured by
a floating charge over the assets of the Company, by share
mortgages of the issued capital and floating charges over
the assets of Sound Hong Kong Limited and NewOcean
(Shenzhen) Energy Investment Limited, and by fixed charge
over the fixed assets of Shenzhen Baorun Liquefied Petroleum
Gas Company Limited which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at December 31, 2009, the Group employed approximately
500 full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and China.
The Group remunerated the employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing market practice.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include a provident
fund scheme, medical insurance scheme and an employee
share option scheme.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any if its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the 12 months ended December 31, 2009.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are
both essential to the Company’s long-term development.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2009 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange,
save for a deviation from the provision governing tenure of
non-executive directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to
re-election. The Company deviated from this provision in
that none of the non-executive directors are appointed for
a fixed term, instead their tenure of office are governed by
the provisions for retirement by rotation and re-election as
provided in the Bye-laws of the Company. (These provisions
are described in the paragraph headed “Non-executive
Directors” below). The Board believes that the fixing of
the tenure of non-executive directors by way of provisions
contained in the Bye-laws, and the shareholders’ right to re-
elect retiring non-executive directors as contained in the Bye-
laws, will serve the long term interests of the Company. In the
opinion of the Board, the measures adopted by the Company
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Securities
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Securities Code during the
year.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises seven executive directors, one
non-executive director and three independent non-executive
directors. Biographical details of all directors of the Company
are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Profile” on
page 4 to page 7.

Membership of the Board during the year ended December
31, 2009 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun (appointed on June 18, 2009)

Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian (appointed on June 18, 2009)
Wang Jian (appointed on June 18, 2009)

Non-executive Director

Wu Hong Cho

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Managing director Shum Chun, Lawrence is the son of Shum

Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a cousin of Cen
Ziniu, executive director of the Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board is vested with the following roles and functions,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management:

° To establish the strategic direction for the development
of the Company and to set the objectives of the
management;

° To approve annual budgets, major funding proposals
and investment proposals;

° To decide on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, directors appointment, dividend and
accounting policies; and

° To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting
and compliance.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, Board
meetings are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are
consulted on the agenda. Procedures are established for all
directors to have free access to board papers and related
information, to review the Group’s internal control, and to have
the services of the Company Secretary to ensure matters
are transacted in the Board in accordance applicable rules
and practices. Directors may seek independent professional
advice upon reasonable request to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Proposed regular Board meeting schedule for the current year
is circulated to the Board in the preceding year. The following
table shows the attendance of directors at meetings of the
Board during the year ended December 31, 2009:

Exe®)

AFERTARZEETSERRERENA
—FREESERN - TREREZ=20004F 12
AS1ALFERNSEERESSOR LR
48R

Number of Meetings

Name of director Attended
EENS HESERE
Executive Directors: HITERE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) B (FRE) 5/5
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFAMHE) 5/5
Cai Xikun 2585 2/2
Cen Ziniu 4 5/5
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond fii=pEadnse 5/5
Siu Ka Fai, Brian EES: 2/2
Wang Jian FEX 2/2
Non-executive Director: FEBITEE -

Wu Hong Cho HHE L 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHTEE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony K99 5/5
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRNB AR 5/5
Dr. Xu Mingshe wELIELT 5/5
Chairman and Managing Director TEREFHER

The offices of Chairman and Managing Director of the KRNI ELREETEAKEBEZ2BMNDE

Company are separated by written guidelines adopted by
the Board to ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The
responsibilities of the Chairman include leadership of the
Board, providing relevant information and mobilizing the
collective resources of the directors in the Board’s roles and
functions. The Managing Director is responsible for leadership
of the management, and for execution of business strategies
and front-line execution.
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Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this report, four members of the Board
are non-executive directors, of whom three are independent
non-executive directors. The term of appointment of non-
executive directors is governed by the Company’s Bye-laws
pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors of the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that the
chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of Directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has set up two Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board has not set up a Nomination
Committee, the establishment of which is a recommended
best practice by the Stock Exchange, and the function of
nomination of new directors is undertaken by the full Board.
Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board has the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board, subject to authorization by the shareholders in general
meeting. Such power is also exercised by the full Board in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its
terms of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible
for the oversight of the management of the Group and the
formulation of administrative guidelines.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee that are in line with the principles
of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors and two executive
directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year to access the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the
senior executives.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee was held in the
year 2009 to review, among other things, the remuneration
packages of the Chairman and the executive directors and
the attendance of each member is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BREESA HESERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) REB(ZEELFE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe (RN 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence A 2/2
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee that are in line with the principles of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-
executive directors on the Board as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal
control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year 2009 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditors;

o Non-auditing work of external auditors;

° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

° Review of interim results and audited financial
statements.

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at
meeting during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BEMR HESERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) wEB(ZEELE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict [ hB A& 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe wAETIET 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
is set out as follows:

BB &

REBEFEAR - BN BT AR R EED
®E » MERSGHMITZERNT

Fees paid/payable

2 EfER
HK$’000
FET
Services rendered RS iRt

Audit services EET RS 2,629
Non-audit services AT ARTS 806
Total &5t 3,435

Internal Control M ERES %

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The management
of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational,
financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control is conducted by the internal audit function of the
management on an on-going basis, and the responsible
personnel will directly report to the Audit Committee on any
significant finding on internal controls.

Through out the year 2009, the Company complied with the
code provisions on internal controls as stipulated in the CG
Code. During the year the Company conducted a full review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and discussed the assessment bases with the management.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and ensuring that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page
46.
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The directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2009.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of LPG and
sales of electronic products.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2009 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 48.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.0 cent per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on June 8, 2010,
amounting to approximately HK$11,558,534. At April 12, 2010,
the number of shares issued and fully paid is 1,155,853,374.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$16,926,000 on property, plant and equipment to expand
and upgrade its gas plant.

During the year, the Group acquired, through the
acquisition of subsidiaries, property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$22,574,000.

Details of these and other movements during the year in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at December 31, 2009 were as follows:

it O

ARRIF2009F 12 A31 Bl #H ok T AR &
MEEBDT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Contributed surplus N3 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings R BB % A 12,643 16,071
14,310 17,738

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Raising of Funds and Use of Proceeds

On December 1, 2009, the Company entered into a placing
and subscription agreement to place, by way of a placing
and top up arrangement, 192,500,000 shares at the placing
price of HK$1.00 per share (the “Placement”). The Placement
has been completed and 192,500,000 shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company were duly issued in accordance with
the terms of the Placement on December 9, 2009. There
were total net proceeds of approximately HK$188,773,000
raised in this Placement and approximately HK$130,000,000
of the net proceeds raised were used for the Group’s capital
expenditure in relation to the expansion of the Groups’ LPG
facilities in Zhuhai, China. The remaining net proceeds were
used for general working capital purposes.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and taken
together with the next four largest customers accounted for
18% and 57% respectively of the Group’s total turnover for
the year.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and taken together
with the next four largest suppliers accounted for 25% and
60% respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)

Cai Xikun (appointed on June 18, 2009)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian (appointed on June 18, 2009)
Wang Jian (appointed on June 18, 2009)

Non-executive director:
Wu Hong Cho
Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, Mr. Cen Ziniu and Dr.
Xu Mingshe shall retire by rotation and Mr. Cai Xikun, Mr. Siu
Ka Fai, Brian and Mr. Wang Jian, shall retire on account of
their being appointed as additional directors during the year.
All the retiring directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election as directors.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

At December 31, 2009, the interests of the directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

EERFRTHRARBREGREMKN
PR
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(a) FLTFISHEEO0.10BTHERPZLF
|

Percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital
issued ordinary of the Company

shares held FRr{iEELTH
Name of director Capacity RSB 81T BRITERG
EENR S5 EERAE Bink
Shum Siu Hung Family interest (note 1) 490,779,280 42.46%
i KicEwm (Het 1)
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 44,933,558 3.89%
ZE EnlEEA
Other (note 2) 73,616,892 6.37%
E (K177 2)
118,550,450 10.26%
Cen Ziniu Other (note 2) 4,907,792 0.42%
ST Hot(ftat2)
Wu Hong Cho Other (note 2) 24,538,964 212%
HEL HAth (5t 2)
Notes: =

1. These represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares
held as corporate interest by Tong Shiu Ming, spouse of
Shum Siu Hung, through Uniocean Investments Limited
(“Uniocean”) as referred to in note (b) below and note 1
under the section (a) headed “Substantial Shareholders”,
and were deemed to be the family interest of Shum Siu Hung.

2. These interests reflect the proportional interest in the
490,779,280 shares held by Uniocean. Uniocean is
owned as to 15% by Shum Chun, Lawrence and 15%
by Shum Ho, Neo, both are the sons of Shum Siu Hung,
64% by Tong Shiu Ming, spouse of Shum Siu Hung, 5%
by Wu Hong Cho and 1% by Cen Ziniu.

1. Aa?ﬂ%‘ﬁﬁ&h*M&ZH&%%/J\EHL‘A@WEE
& BREMIERERARNEE DEEY
490,779,280H§H§fﬂaH(iTWIb&(I
DR JaMisE1) WHBRBHRSDENR
GRS -

2. HERmDEEHBEE=S
490,779,280 % AN A 7 i
BB RS D
EEREFF 5 R
64% ~ 5% %1% °
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in ERERIETHRARBREMREREKSR
Shares and Underlying Shares (Continued) RZESZ)
(b) Share options (b) FER%IE
Number of
Number of underlying
Name of executive director Capacity options held shares
BiTESEMR 3 FRISERERNE FSHRRKRGEE
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 9,940,358 9,940,358
200 EnREBA
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond Beneficial owner 6,626,905 6,626,905
AR BB A
Siu Ka Fai, Brian Beneficial owner 4,970,179 4,970,179
BERE EnlAA
21,637,442 21,637,442
Number of
Name of independent Number of underlying
non-executive director Capacity options held shares
BIUFRTEFERSR 213 RIS ERE FRSHRRKRGEE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony Beneficial owner 1,104,484 1,104,484

5K #9155 EmBEEA

Other than as disclosed above and nominee shares in
certain subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for
the Group, none of the directors, chief executives nor
their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at December 31, 2009.

REXHEBEERE TEERERAEENUE
REEATMRE THBRQBRFAE 2 EARD
SN - 7200912 A31H - HREE - FEAT
BABRBRESEBZBMEAT T ERBAR
ASEMERR ZESFEEIAR -
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Share Options

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and
option types are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

share options during the year:

MRRxE

ARRZEEEAE RBENFBENGEEM
BMARMEES ©

TREBARBFANBRIEZEED

Outstanding Outstanding
at at
12.31.2009 12.31.2008
Option type 7 12.31.2009 7 12.31.2008
AR HERITE RRITHE
Category 1: Directors
1 E=E
Shum Siu Hung 2006B 9,940,358 9,940,358
Y
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 2006B 6,626,905 6,626,905
i AR
Siu Ka Fai, Brian (note) 2006A 4,970,179 —
AEIE(H3E)
Total directors 21,537,442 16,567,263
EEEY
Note: KBia -

As Siu Ka Fai, Brian was not a director of the Company in 2008, his
holding as employee of 4,970,179 options was not included under

“Total Directors” for that year.

Category 2: Independent
Non-Executive Directors
B2 BUFBTESE

HARFERIBR 2008 FWIEANGBESE  HFUET
BEE 4,970 17T9RBRERTAZTEIEEA
H]—E\-

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony 2006B 1,104,484 1,104,484
RE599%

Category 3: Employees

S¥W3: BT 2006A 9,940,358 14,910,537

32,582,284 32,682,284
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or their respective spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly in any contract,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MREERNRRFZRH

B EXPTIREESN - ARTF] - REBRAF S
HAEMMERARRFAETME RSB ZE
M RARAEE  FERAZEBR
18 5% oA N F 2 AJ RE MR AR 2 Bl s (T fa] L Af )R
ABEE 2 Betn S fE 75 BV Flat o

EE EEREREXGHZES

FAZBERSFBEINEESTEIREN
FE39 ¢

B E XTI ERSN  ARE] - EERARSHE
EAEMNBARLES BT I ARAREER
ERRRERKFMERNEPZREEAMNEM
RAFERERIEFAERNERANER L
BEREH -



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1&8REBABR AR

Substantial Shareholders

As at December 31,

2009, the register of substantial

shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that
other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company.

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

Name of shareholder

Capacity

BB 513

Shum Siu Hung

Family interest (note 1)

FERE
A2009F 12 5318 > $E%F$/D\Eﬂfwéia’i

N HRE 16151 55 336 1§ R T8
ERA IS IINE

R Z T ERRE
TEIJh$%Dﬁ$@ET%ﬁ$’AET

BERTRAZEEEDZLKE

(a)

i K (Ma 1)
Tong Shiu Ming Held by corporation (note 1)
/N NEESEAR (M)
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneﬂmal owner
& EREBA

Other (note 2)

Hoth (Htzt2)

Yam Tak Cheung
FTRE

Notes:

1.

490,779,280 shares of the Company are held as
corporate interest by Tong Shiu Ming through Uniocean
which is owned as to 15% by Shum Chun, Lawrence,
15% by Shum Ho, Neo, 64% by Tong Shiu Ming, 5%
by Wu Hong Cho and 1% by Cen Ziniu. The shares are
family interest of Shum Siu Hung because Tong Shiu
Ming is the spouse of Shum Siu Hung, and Shum Chun,
Lawrence and Shum Ho, Neo are sons of Shum Siu
Hung.

This interest reflect the proportional interest in the
490,779,280 shares of the Company held by Uniocean
attributable to Shum Chun, Lawrence in respect of his
15% interest in Uniocean.

80,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Integrated
Asset Management (Asia) Limited (“Integrated Asset”).
Yam Tak Cheung owns 100% of Integrated Asset and is
deemed to be the controlling shareholder of Integrated
Asset.

Held by corporation (note 3)
NEVERTER (M 3)

Mzt -

1.

issued ordinary

REQTSREHEI0ETEERZY
-

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

of the Company

Number of

shares held

FiSE 25 Fris & 27
ERITHERME CRTRFEIHL
490,779,280 42.46%
490,779,280 42.46%
44,933,558 3.89%
73,616,892 6.37%
80,000,000 6.92%

7] 2 490,779,280 J% A% 15 /1 /& /)N BA LA
Eéﬁ:l ;’Eiﬂ/@ﬂw?—rﬁ /@HBFHH>$
CENE HEEREFF DR
©15% - 64% ~ 5% K 1% > B E /)
BEDHEZIRE  MBERSEDNSDIEL
T MZEROEEBSDEREERS °

DF DS Bt
ﬁma»

—_

5

BT FTR B M 490,779,280 &
AARBRHEF B (BEESR 15% 58 #Z
) IR B MRS o

7N A &) 2 80,000,000 B B% 17 M Integrated
Asset Management (Asia) Limited ([ ASFE )
BhH TEEBAEAMEI00%EZ  YEM
WAR BATE 2 PRARALER -
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

(b) Share options

Name of shareholder Capacity

B & 317

Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner
S0 EnlAA

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short position in
the issued share capital of the Company as at December 31,
2009.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended December 31, 2009.

FERRE)
(b) FEREE
Number of
Number of underlying
share options shares

FSRIRENE FMSHERKROBA

9,940,358 9,940,358

B EXFTHEBEEIN  BARRFTESM S B
2009F 12 A31H ' ARAB&ITRAS I
EAMEMEEERSAR -

Bl B R
AEBEIZHMBRIIBFHEZESRE

WEZER - B MBENBIET o

ARBEFEZME I HFHEZESEERA
RAEZREFE  AARBERALERTEHR
FHEFIREER] ©

AAREHEMERENE  (EAHEERA
EREEZEE - BRI ZHBRIREE
BTSRRI FEST -

BRLRBRESKE

AARPEHZE2009F 12 A31 B IEE@EFE
NEHFRANZIERE -



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #71/586EEEA R AT

Events After the Reporting Period

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting
period are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, April 12, 2010

EHRBERER
RERBEBENEZETH L FBHNTH
WA E42 -

573 0]

ARBIBREERRBEFAE FIRE2EEMBE

EfRE) e EMRT GAHENTT RN R AAZ B
LIRFBRER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.
=2

To the Members of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 48 to 150, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2009,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

BHBREARERARAFTERE
(REREZFMEK L BRAA])

EEEEZRINHNEASE 150 EFBRERE
BERAREARDEREFRAI(HEBIE
S8 ZEEMBRE - REUBEHRERBE
2009 12 A31 B 2R & MR N K - A K
HEZHILFEZRAEZANEER  HEkE
HEHREGEHREERERERNEESHI
R E I E A M FEARRE o

ESHRGaMBBERIRE

BERAIZEZARBEHBEGHM RS RM
ZEBUMBHREENRFE ARG ZHE
RERE REERRNF I RZ SRS UG
WK - WEEEBRER  BRAGFERHR
REEM AT S E /M5 RKR AR AR
BRESE - MEARA M ISR N FHE B R GE
HERME M ERHEREL - RERES
BEZEEE  MEBEATHELAEZE
BECE
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BBEZRE

BEEZREERBREATZIES  B%FHA
MHEBRREEER - ERA2ERRBEANT
ZBR - BRUILASN - RIBERERBDEF 90
# o RIE A AEREMAE - ATTHAH
AHEANREEMEAMALAESE EEM
B - AT DHRBEBESFMASHMZE
BEERETERIE - ZERIZERKLT
BTERRE  UREMRTER  UEGE
BEZSFEEMBRRES A FETMERX
5 R BR AL ©

BERSERTEANDGEEE BB RRA
HBELPRBEETRAMIEZEE - TER
Z T2 AR AT (R H T - B YRR B RGE
HERMEBRAMBRREFAEEANER
PR B R B o E AX B % AR AT
B2zl SRERAELEEEA T
JsR A IS MRMEM 2 WA T - ARG
BREREBRzEZEN - BXF BEE
B2 AREBZRBBERBR - EXTER
FEEEMRAZETBRRESTEE - kA
EHZGHAMEREE - URTEHRSH
BlmR < BEBEFH -

BEEREATEIRAREE 2 BRRE N
ERIERZBERER < &l -
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Opinion &R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give ZERR  ZEREMBHRERECBRERBHY
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as %i&%iﬁﬂllﬁﬁéﬁi Finm S£EHR
at December 31, 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash 2009F 12 A 31 H 2 W BUKR K ER B =%
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong BEFEZMBRBESRE  WEZRRBRES
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly NEMERI 2 BB RELZERE -

prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu HEZE AN
Certified Public Accountants fEEh o BHEBRA EEHEH 1T
Hong Kong BB

April 12, 2010 20105 4 H12 H
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For the year ended December 31, 2009

B Z2009F 12 431 HiEFE

Note HK$°000 HK$ 000
Bzt FET FET
Revenue WA 6 6,483,119 6,158,614
Cost of sales SHER AR (6,087,801) (5,931,218)
Gross profit e 395,318 227,396
Other income H A 8 28,029 163,699
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEI (84,957) (99,087)
Administrative expenses IHE (93,413) (85,562)
Written off of trade debtors BN E 5 BR 0 2 24 (2,256) (17,167)
Written off of other debtors Hfo FEURBR 50 2 8 24 = (1, 115)
Written off of other assets Hi B E 2 #isH 22(b) (4,190)
Impairment on goodwill recognised BREERE 19 (7,500) =
Changes in fair values of foreign currency INEERHAENRTEL
forward contracts o 2,607 11,936
Adjustment to goodwill EERE 19 - (135)
Interests on bank trust receipts BREARTERNRITET
loans pledged with bank deposits WE BT 2 FIE (19,677) (72,760)
Other finance costs Hin g &R A 9 (52,896) (72,723)
Impairment and share of loss of a jointly RERAE—RERZE
controlled entity EREB (5,972) (360)
Profit before taxation BTt A s 7 11 155,093 54,122
Taxation charge MIEZ 10 (42,642) (1,211)
Profit for the year FR R 112,451 52,911
Other comprehensive income Hin2Ekes
Exchange differences arising on translation ~ HEELZENZHE 275 12,975
Total comprehensive income for the year FRBEZENE 112,726 65,386
Profit for the year attributable to: EEERET :
Owners of the Company N/NGIEZEN 112,451 52,911
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  E{EE2EHA :
Owners of the Company Vi/NGIE 2N 112,730 65,886
Minority interests LPERRER (4) -
112,726 65,886
Earnings per share SREF
Basic and diluted EARESE 15 HK11.53 cents #fll  HK8.48 cents /&l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Péslilon

At December 31, 2009
R20094F 12 31 H

HK$’000 HK$°000
HqE FET FET
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MR KA 16 572,471 572,037
Prepaid lease payments for land t TS A ‘%?A 17 66,164 54,341
Prepaid lease payments for coast BEEMEER 18 11,512 12,271
Goodwill SES 19 120,509 123,436
Other intangible assets Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ? 20 15,961 15,739
Interest in a jointly controlled entity HRIEHIEEER 21 6,170 12,142
Other assets Jﬂzéﬁ?‘ 22 68,111 31,401
Deferred tax assets EERIBREE 32 1,190 1,656
862,088 822,923
Current assets S E
Inventories FE 23 425,846 137,666
Trade debtors and bills receivable [EWE 5 ERH R
eSS 24 762,023 447,671
Other debtors, deposits and H A fE U BR TR
prepayments e RIBAFOAE 24 579,588 412,053
Derivative financial instruments PTEBEIA 41 6,057 550
Prepaid lease payments for land T FER A S RE 17 2,650 2,348
Prepaid lease payments for coast /ii—i‘ﬁﬁf &8 18 778 778
Amount due from a jointly Rl — st R 5 T8 Y S0A
controlled entity 25 341 319
Pledged bank deposits B RIRITIE 26 1,392,355 732,199
Bank balances and cash RITEHEIRE 26 194,716 143,756
3,364,354 1,877,340
Current liabilities B E
Trade creditors and bills payable BN E SRR RENEZE 27 954,001 322,087
Other creditors and accrued HipfefRR R EATEH
charges 28 139,332 215,789
Derivative financial instruments MTEFBIA 41 3,450 =
Tax liabilities WK‘% S 18,807 5,378
Borrowings — repayable B — BER—FREE
within one year 29 2,052,545 1,309,045
Obligation for put option to minority RTHMB AR DEHMER
shareholder of a subsidiary RontE BT 33 5,103 5,103
3,173,238 1,857,402
Net current assets MENEERE 191,116 19,938
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDEE 1,053,204 842,861
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NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1&8REBABR AR

of Financial Position

At December 31, 2009
R2009F 12 531 H

HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FETT FET
Capital and reserves £ 9351
Share capital [N 30 115,586 96,336
Share premium and other reserves B0 18 R HoAth i 5 899,104 619,741
Equity attributable to equity KRR EmEA A
holders of the Company FE(h e 1,014,690 716,077
Minority interests DB R 1,527 1,531
Total equity B 1,016,217 717,608
Non-current liabilities FRBHAR
Deferred tax liabilities RETRIA R 32 19,187 15,002
Borrowings — repayable B — R—F&ER
over one year 29 17,800 110,251
36,987 125,253
1,053,204 842,861

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 150
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on April 12, 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shum Siu Hung

=DM
Director

EF

Shum Chun, Lawrence
=8
Director

EZE

BEETR2010F 4 A 12 BE IR EEN
FA48E 150 B 2R A MR - WA FAIE
ERRFEE -



i 2R q A
8 Co'risblid'afed. Statement of Changes —
4RS fh)i%mébﬁi
Annual Report 2009 —ZZNEFR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZ2009F 12 A31 HIFFZE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FNACHRREARLES

Share
capital

23

HK$:000

Share

premium

RiHER
HK$:000

Special
reserve

L) 1]
HK$'000

Statutory
surplus

reserves
EE
EREH

HK$'000

Exchange
reserve

ER G
HK$:000

Share
options
reserve

RREER
HK$:000

Con-
tributed
surplus
accounts

BARRE
HK$'000

Retained
profits
REAH
HK$'000

HK$:000

Minority
interests

LLEY
HK$'000

HK$'000

A7 & AT AT A7 A7 AT AT &7 AT AT
THE GROUP 550
At January 1, 2008 R200851A1A 48,168 199,299 122,085 5,046 38,917 5,663 1,667 92,225 513,130 10,713 523,843
Profit for the year EREH = = = = - - - 52,911 52,911 - 52,911
Other comprehensive EREMEE
income for the year WA - - - - 12,975 - - - 12,975 - 12,975
Total comprehensive FEREENAEE
income for the year - - - - 12,975 - - 52,911 65,886 - 65,886
Appropriations Ak - - - 1,244 - - - (1,244) - - -
Dividend paid (note 14) Tx%{/%*ﬁw/ = - - - = - - (5,298) (5,298) - (5,298)
Issue of new shares due
to open offer (note 30) 48,168 96,335 - - - - - - 144,503 - 144,503
Transaction costs attributable %
to issue of new shares - (2,144) - - - - - - (2,144) - (2,144)
Acquisition of additional %*WEQEW
interest in a subsidiary PR = = - - - - - - - (9,182) (9,182)
At December 31, 2008 #2008
12A318 96,336 293,490 122,085 6,290 51,952 5,663 0667 138,594 716,077 1,531 717,608
Profit for the year EREH = - - - - - - 112,451 112,451 - 112,451
Other comprehensive EREHIERA
income for the year - - - - 279 - - - 279 (o] 275
Total comprehensive FEREENAEE
income for the year - - - - 279 - - 112,451 112,730 (4 112,726
Appropriations ik = - - 18,477 - - - (18,477) - - -
Dividend paid (note 14) BRREWE14) = - - - = - - (2,890) (2,890) - (2,890)
Issue of new shares due RAREEMEND
to open offer (note 30) w0 19,250 178,250 - - - - - - 192,500 - 192,500
Transaction costs attributable & HREM 2
to issue of new shares RGHA = (3,727) - - - - - - (8,727) - (3,727)
At December 31, 2009 R2009%
128318 115,586 463,013 122,085 24,767 52,231 5,663 1,667 229,678 1,014,690 1527 1,016,217

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the share capital,

share premium and capital

7R 5 B 2 5 ) fefh 4 8 N S [ A (T B AR 42
tERERNBERMFE - EA

Al Z A~ BRAR

J'L/‘\

redemption reserve of the Group’s former ultimate holding
company whose shares were exchanged for the Company’s
shares and the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company pursuant to a scheme of arrangement dated
April 14, 1999.

The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise
development and general reserve funds appropriated from the
profit after taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations.

NEIBIE1999F 4 14 B[ 2 BEREER
Rt M AZ AR BITARRRG 2HEEZ
EHH o

AEBBBEEERETRERRBAE 1
PEARAMBIHRE])KZ ZHE R A
BRRBRBEMAD K EEERE —RERE

& °
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NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 R EBAR A A

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZ2009F 12 A31 HIFFZE

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hrat FRT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXE
Profit before taxation PR A A 155,093 54,122
Adjustments for: AE.
Share of loss of a jointly controlled DME—REREHIEEEE
entity 5,972 360
Other finance costs H & B 7R 52,896 72,723
Interests on bank trust receipts loans BEBIRITFRORITERT
pledged with bank deposits W B2 FIL.S 19,677 72,760
Interest income B A (18,038) (46,324)
(Gain) on change in fair value of TEFBTARFERE
derivative financial instruments (Fr1%) (2,607) (11,936)
Adjustment to goodwill B - 135
Depreciation of property, plant and M BBERERETE
equipment 41,187 37,467
Impairment on goodwill recognised MR ERIE 7,500 —
Written off of trade debtors EIE 5 BR 50 2 Wi sH 2,256 17,167
Written off of other debtors Hoth R AR 0 8 - 1,115
Written off of other assets B B 2 8 22(b) 4,190 -
Loss on disposal and written-off of HE RSEmE - #E R
property, plant and equipment HE 2 BE 296 95
Amortisation of prepaid lease T TR E SRR
payments for land 2,420 2,316
Amortisation of prepaid lease BTN S SR
payments for coast 778 767
Amortisation of other intangible assets — Ef fE i & A1 5 3,271 2,347
Operating cash flows before movements “E&Z4EH 2 ELHE
in working capital ﬁ@) 274,891 203,114
Increase in inventories FEEm (287,748) (10,741)
Increase in trade debtors and bills U 5 BR 3R I P U 43
receivable (315,254) (38,975)
Increase in other debtors, deposits and ~ EfbEUER « &S RIEMN T
prepayments Iﬁi“ﬂu (164,730) (262,716)
(Increase) decrease in amount due from  FEU— ££ &) 722 | & B& 2 I8 R
a jointly controlled entity (s40) (22) 152
Increase (decrease) in trade creditors FEW B 5 BR 30 B 5 SR ERE
and bills payable OB A) 627,486 (59,729)
(Decrease) increase in other creditors HoAth i BR 5K e FE 5T 22 R 3 A
and accrued charges (RA) (118,228) 118,975
Refund of rental deposit for LPG vessel RILRMAERE R 10,898 =
Cash generated from (used in) REEE(FRA)BEE
operations 27,293 (44,920)
PRC income tax paid SRS (31,468) (2,124)
Interest paid FAFIE (72,573) (145,483)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING BEXBMARESH
ACTIVITIES (76,748) (192,527)
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Note HK$’000 HK$°000
HqE FETT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Interest received B U A 8 18,038 46,324
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash ~ WEHB AR (B INRFEZE
and cash equivalents acquired) S RERBEER) 34 (19,192) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  KERE
equipment (18,900) (81,568)
Deposit paid for acquisition of a STAWERB AR ZES
subsidiary - (16,313)
(Increase) decrease in pledged bank BRI SR (32 00) ik >
deposits (660,156) 23,176
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - R RBEF
plant and equipment 138 83
Increase in other assets Hith & EE3E N (68,111) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BRERZBMARSBEH
ACTIVITIES (748,183) (28,298)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interest paid BAFE (2,403) (6,184)
Borrowings raised L5E% 5,180,721 5,343,564
Repayment of borrowings BERER (4,526,960) (5,223,801)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT S 192,500 144,503
Expenses on issue of shares BITRA S H (3,727) (2,144)
Dividend paid BERRE (2,890) (5,298)
Deposit received from an independent  WEI—BY F =%k
third party 28 40,000 —
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEEBEERESIHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 877,241 250,640
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH H&RERR&EHIBNEHE
EQUIVALENTS 52,310 29,815
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SEREESTTE
RATE CHANGES 456 6,167
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENHERERABEEH
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 141,950 105,968
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXBERERATEEH
END OF THE YEAR 194,716 141,950
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HeRERAREEESH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 194,716 143,756
Bank overdrafts RITHEL = (1,806)
194,716 141,950
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General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Uniocean Investments Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The address of the registered office of the Company is
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Group are the sale and
distribution of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and sale
of electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“BRMB”), the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. For the
purpose of the consolidated financial statements and
convenience of the financial statements users, the
results and financial position of the Group are expressed
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), the presentation currency
for the consolidated financial statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).

R

ARRBDMRBREEMALZZHEE
REFEAR  RABRNEREHERS
PRERAR(BRM]) LT - E&RER
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-INT 9 &

HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-INT 13
HK(IFRIC)-INT 15
HK(IFRIC)-INT 16

HK(IFRIC)-INT 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of financial statements

Borrowing costs

Puttable financial instruments and obligations
arising on liquidation

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly
controlled entity or associate

Vlesting conditions and cancellations

Improving disclosures about financial
instruments

Operating segments

Embedded derivatives

Customer loyalty programmes

Agreements for the construction of real
estate

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation

Transfers of assets from customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008,
except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 that
is effective for annual periods beginning or
after July 1, 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in
relation to the amendment to paragraph 80
of HKAS 39

ERHITRESTEEMBRE
E(HFBMEREERN ) (&)

BEGTERE %
(2007 FE4ERT)

B2 ERIE 235
(2007 FEIEET)

BASEAERRR
EREHCHES)

BANBREENE KR RIEBRR

BegrEAE 27k
(7T A)
BEMBREE
EPLACHEN)
BAMHREER
FTHR(EIEX)
BEMBRELENF8H
BE(ERMBRERR
Z8%) - 2BF9%
REEGEAE 305
(EAT%)
B (ARHHaERE
Z8g) - RS 13%
BE(ERMBRERR
Z88) - 2BS15%
BE(ARMBRELE
Z88) - 2EF16%
B (BRMHaERE
Z8g) - 2ES18%
BEMBRE L
(BAT%)

BEMBREE
(BAT%)

MBHER 25
BERA

HENBIARERE
HZEf

HR ]
agﬁﬂﬁ%%’&
ZBERA

BB RH

EBMBIARE
ZHE

EENR

RAATET R

P Bt

B EREwHZ
BIRBREFRE
HtEPERAE

2008 ERMH 2 BRI
RERA 7K - R
20007 A1B82E
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2009 EH BB S
F 395 F 80 A2
BEMBHREER 2K
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Excepts as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial
statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) has introduced a number of
terminology changes (including revised titles for the
consolidated financial statements) and has resulted in
a number of changes in presentation and disclosure.
However, HKAS 1 (Revised) has had no impact on the
reported results or financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure Standard that requires the
identification of operating segments to be performed on
the same basis as financial information that is reported
internally for the purpose of allocating resources
between segments and assessing their performance.
The application of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments and
has had no impact on the reported results or financial
position of the Group.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The Group had not provided comparative information
for the expanded disclosures in accordance with the
transitional provision set out in the amendments.

ERHITRESTEEMBRE
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BR NPt &SN - BRMFET G IER] &
BB HREENHAREARLAH S
AR S E M RRABEATE -

Faat RS 1 R(EEMBER
Z25

ERGHEAFE1IREEEFT)SIAZ
AMEZE(BRGAVBRERZITE
B5]) BHEIREEEFRAZRE
oA BEGHENF1IRER
FHAKEEZE EREGEHMBAR

N

WEZE -
EEMEREEANEHRESENE
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(FRMBHEENE7RETE M
IRBEED

FRMBHREENE7THRUETAN)EX
N FEAENTE T AR FEFER
FOWE - REBEZFET A BIE
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures) (Continued)

The adoption of these new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations had no material effect
on the results and financial position of the Group for the
current and/or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that

ERHITRESTEEMBRE
E(HFBMEREERN ) (&)

MEIABENGE
(FEMEBEREENE 7TRETEH HE
IAR#RE(#Z)

RN SR E] RARIERT R BRI A
REHREEARHE LB e
ZERERMBRAL BEALE - Hit
BAEHATHIFAE -

AREBEWERFRAUTEB/ME R AR
R Z #A] RARIERT R B R] A2

have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC)-INT 14
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC)-INT 17

HK(IFRIC)-INT 19

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
improvements to HKFRSs 2008'

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009°

Related party disclosures®

Consolidated and separate financial statements'

Classification of rights issues

Eligible hedged items'

Additional exemptions for first-time adopters®

Limited exemption from comparative HKFRS 7
disclosures for first-time adopters®

Group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions®

Business combinations'

Financial instruments’

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement®

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners'

Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments”

qoo
o

o

BAGRRESER ERMBREENE S
({E3T) ZERTR - R BB
BREER| 2008 F 2
HEZHH
BARBREEA 2009 FRMBM BB
(BETR) R 2 =
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)
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CHEY)
BAEERE 9% AEkEHER
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,

2009.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2009 and January 1, 2010, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
February 1, 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
Group’s accounting for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2010.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment
for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised Standards,
Amendments of Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Non-controlling interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at the
date of the original business combination and the non-
controlling interest’'s share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
non-controlling interest in excess of the non-controlling
interest’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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HAMBBRRDIREBEELRANEER
B MEWN XFTE 28R RRPTAE
B MBI ANREATEENE -

REMBHRRDRETESHAMAGAH
B2 BEMBHRELER(FEV R
SEA DR - W HREMBHRER
B R E 7 £ AR B R EE R m R D)
HREZERKESE -

meRE

HEMBRRIVEEARBRAREE
PER(EWNBAR) 2MBHRE - &
AAFAREEEB M B REERR
AESFE - BHARSES -

FAMBBHRBAR 2 XEaRERD
EEAKEZERSR

FIBERBARS - & - WARZHS
RiRE R E S -

HEMBRARFEERNZ D BRRATIG
o EAREMEZERDFAIER R
FEET RSB RZSEER
[RE G 0 B 2 B8 MR B s 8
EZEHBEHARZEAZE - FARN
FEFRRRE 2R 2 B 1R R h OB B 1 B A
Z FRPRRRE a2 BURR R AN SR B Y M R
RIER DR - HEDBBRRANORDEE
R RAIARAD I E /R R ERRSD -



Aveirss 3

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1&8REBABR AR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZ2009F 12 A31 HIFFZE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to
the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary

The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
consideration paid for the additional interest. The
goodwill is calculated as the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the net
assets of the subsidiary attributable to the additional
interest acquired.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition of a subsidiary is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the entity
are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill
is included within the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment separately. Instead,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment as a single asset. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment in the associate. Any reversal of impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, less discounts, sales related taxes, returns
and allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
timely basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assets to that
asset’s net carrying amount.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item
is derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such
intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition
date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

FREMBE D)

RERitnArREEREZRERR
(AT8E Likem B e BE) (&)

EREBRRFELRE BEMNKEE
eI MEEHFEHREKE B
REIR IR IREE - T BB KRNI
BECLAFRBEFERERRMNEK
HE - HREBEDRES L#IAR/K
A °

R

FERRAERAIZEFERE 2RE
EAER - KANFEELRHTTEAE -

S

\mﬁxﬂ%ﬁlaﬁZMﬁﬁ%
AR BRI E B N2 (SN
M)LﬁZX%i’]Hzx% B Hi 2 3 A bE
ﬁ%ﬁ S RERENII e EE(INZE R
EMMEFELEE 2 B8 )RR - R
SRR - UHNEEE 2 EEIAE 5%
EHZEREXRSHIAE - BINKBE
RAGTE 2 IFEMIEE HASHHRE -

REERBRES %EEMFEZER%
BN R FELEFAARERER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stat'éments
sr e B IS R M

Annual Report 2009 —ZZNEFR

For the year ended December 31, 2009

ELZE2009F 12 A 31 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations recorded at the functional currency are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. HKD) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the exchange
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the year in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after January 1, 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expenses that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items of income or expenses that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
assets are set out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade
debtors, bills receivable, other debtors and deposits and
amount due from a jointly controlled entity are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables and bills receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade creditors, bills payable,
other creditors and accrued charges and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives that are not designated and effective as
hedging instrument are classified as held for trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after November 7,
2002 and vested after January 1, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustments to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the management has
made various estimates factors about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
relating to sale and distribution of LPG arising from
the acquisition of subsidiaries are impaired require an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill and intangible assets have
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the future cash
flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at December
31, 2009, the carrying amounts of goodwill and
intangible assets are approximately HK$120,509,000 and
HK$15,961,000 respectively (2008: HK$123,436,000 and
HK$15,739,000). Details of the goodwill and intangible
assets are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 respectively.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

As at December 31, 2009, a deferred tax asset of
approximately HK$1,190,000 (2008: HK$1,556,000) in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year in
which such a reversal takes place. Details of unused
tax losses not recognised amounted to approximately
HK$186,453,000 (2008: HK$94,629,000) are disclosed
in note 32. The unused tax losses not recognised may
be capitalised if the actual future profits generated are
more than expected.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 29,
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital and retained profits.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues, payment of dividends and
the raise of bank borrowings or the repayment of the
existing bank borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during
the year.

Categories of financial instruments

BEEREERMBIAE)

BEEBER(E)

AEEEEBEFRESKNAREBENR
BRCEREEEERNESER - K
KEERBITHR - ABRERIEM
RITERREERE ZRITERAFE
HERESER -

AR EEEERRETE -

MBEIAZER

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#TT FET
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables Bk R IR
(including cash and cash (BREFAeR
equivalents) ZRIREER) 2,479,270 1,372,432
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBEIEA 6,057 550
Financial liabilities HMBRAR
Amortised cost X ZN B 54 3,137,152 1,832,958
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBIE 3,450 —
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Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, borrowings, trade
debtors, bills receivable, other debtors, deposits,
trade creditors and bills payable, other creditors and
foreign exchange forward contracts. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade
debtors, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, trade creditors and bills payable and
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies as disclosed in notes 24, 26, 27 and 29
respectively. Approximately 18% (2008: 11%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities
making the sale, whilst almost 52% (2008: 21%) of
costs are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity’s functional
currency.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

BEEREERMBIAE)

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

MERBREZARRME(E)

mEmEE (&)

()

E¥mg (&)

AEBIINESIECEREERE
BaERNmEARZEREERNT

Liabilities
&R
2009 2009
—ETAE —EZTHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#ET FET TFET FHEIT
United States Dollars ETT
(“USD”) 425,473 165,213 2,531,738 1,595,163
European Dollars T
(“EUR") — - 72,214

During the financial years, the management has
entered into several foreign currency forward
contracts to reduce the exposure of currency
risk. As at December 31, 2009, the Group has
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts with
an aggregate notional amount of USD170,837,000
(2008: USD55,084,000 and EURG6,288,000) in
relation to RMB. The details of the foreign currency
forward contracts are disclosed in note 41.

RAFREE - EEEERHD
NSRRI B LURE B B[R 2 %7
o A2009F 12 A31H - K &
E A #7170,837,000 3 7t (2008
F : 55,084,000 3% Jt & 6,288,000
BUL) 2 BAESHERNALEE %
LoHATRARE ZINE RS
4 o INESRERE 4 2 FE IR BRI R
41 H5FE o
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)~ Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HKD is pegged with
USD, the currency risk is mainly arising from
exchange USD and EUR against RMB. The
following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in USD and EUR
against RMB and 5% increase and decrease
RMB/USD or RMB/EUR forward exchange rate.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates and RMB/EUR and
RMB/USD forward exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at
the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates or their fair value at the year end for a 5%
change in forward exchange rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit where RMB strengthen 5% against USD and
EUR. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and the balances
below would be negative.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. REXRREERRMBIAE)

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEHEEERBE(Z)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) i) AC=)

(i) Currency risk (Continued) ) EEEkE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE DT ()

EUR impact
- 2

2009 2008
“BPAEFE 2 —_TT)N\HF

USD impact
EnRE
2009 2008
“EBAE TN\

HK$°000 HK$’000

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#&iT FET TFET FET
Increase (decrease) R 3G N
in profit for the year O (Ktaz)
(Note)
— monetary assets — SRMEEKR
and liabilities =l - 3,357 94,034 66,987
— foreign currency — HNESIRHR
forward contracts =X - (2,832) (54,620) (17,582)
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure Kt - EEBERRFRAREENIEE

outstanding on bank balances, receivables,
payables and borrowings denominated in USD and
EUR and foreign currency forward contracts as at
year end.

TENMBUTTE BRIRITAE R - B
R - A RR SRR S B A 2R
HE B o
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on bank loans which
carried at prevailing market interest rates.

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits which are
carried at fixed interest rate. The directors consider
the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank balances are
within short maturity periods.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to fixed-rate borrowings (see note 29 for
details of these borrowings). The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s
borrowings.

RERREERMBIAE)
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mEmE(E)
(i) FFEmER
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of outstanding
balances at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended December 31,
2009 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$2,335,000 (2008: HK$2,427,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s approximately
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings.

RERREERMBIAE)

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

mEmE(E)

(i)
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Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at December 31, 2009, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has significant concentration risk on certain
customers. As at December 31, 2009, three (2008: six)
customers amounted approximately HK$582,315,000
(2008: HK$400,768,000) comprised over 76% (2008:
90%) of the Group’s trade debtors. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debtors,
other debtors and deposits at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at December 31, 2009, the Group has undrawn
short term borrowing facilities with floating rate
amounting to approximately HK$2,467,169,000 (2008:
HK$1,429,454,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. The total undiscounted cash flows
adjustment column represents the possible future cash
flows attributable to the instrument included in the
maturity analysis which are not included in the carrying
amount of the financial liabilities on the end of the
reporting period.
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Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table

As at December 31,

2009

Trade creditors and
bills payable

Other creditors

Fixed interest rates
borrowings

Variable interest rate
borrowings

Derivatives — gross
settlement
Foreign currency
forward contracts
— inflow
— outflow

12009612431

EREZRRR
DS S

EMEAERR

ERIES

TR

Weighted
average
effective

interest

rate
ik B
ERfl=

1.88%

2.96%

Annual Report 2009 —ZZNEFR
BEFXRBREERMBEIAE)
HBERREEERREEZ)

ROELmEE(E)

REE T RFF R

Carrying

amount at

balance

sheet

Within Over 2 years to date

1 year 1 year 5 years R#&EHA
1R 1240 L 2FE5F ZEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
954,001 - - 954,001 954,001
139,332 - - 139,332 139,332
1,528,568 - - 1,528,568 1,511,037
544,608 5,175 13,427 563,210 559,308
3,166,509 5,175 13,427 3,185,111 3,163,678
(1,302,344) - - (1,302,344) (1,302,344)
1,304,951 - - 1,304,951 1,304,951
2,607 - - 2,607 2,607

3
F
-
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued)

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
IR
(il
As at December 31, 2008412 A31H
2008
Trade creditors and ENEZRT K
bills payable NES -
Other creditors HIERER =
Fixed interest rates B FIEfEH
borrowings 6.15%
Variable interest rate  JFEIFIE{E
borrowings 6.36%

Derivatives — gross T E RS

settlement

Foreign currency INERHEN
forward contracts
— inflow - mA
— outflow — i

5. BXRREERMBIAGE)
MERBREEERRBE (&)
mBELmE(E)
HEBE & RFIFEREGEZ(E)

Carrying

amount at

balance

sheet

Within Over 2 years to date

1 year 1 year 5 years Total NEER
15/ 1M E 2FEHF ] prd: ] ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
322,087 - - 322,087 322,087
91,575 - - 91,575 91,575
850,894 - - 850,894 838,081
479,161 57,558 136,207 672,926 581,215
1,743,717 57,558 136,207 1,937,482 1,832,958
(497,747) — — (497,747) (497,747)
497197 = = 497197 497197
(550) - - (550) (550)
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts
are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis
using quoted forward exchange rates and applicable
yield curve matching the maturities of the contracts.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns and
allowances and rental income of LPG bottles for the
year, and is analysed as follows:

RERREERMBIAE)

AFE

MBEBERAGRMERITETRE)ZA
FEBAR —REERARSRRED
ZEBRN - HSERARNTERS
MBUTAZBARREEE -

SR K 2 R HETIRRA A HRE
HAPE R [ A W B B BAR AT 2 B R E
BHRZMRRSREDTEE -

ESRRRBERANGEMBHRE L
Rz BEERMBAR REER
HAFEMEE -

A

W\ T O R B SRR
SRR B MR 2 & AT - A B
R R 8 B2 Bk B BB R A 2
ATE - EAHT

HK$°000 HK$°000

FHETT FETT

Sale and distribution of LPG HE R IHRIER 5,713,597 5,702,341
Sale of electronic products HEBTEM 760,497 456,273
Rental of LPG bottles HERERIR 9,025 —
6,483,119 6,158,614
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Segment Information

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from January 1, 2009. HKFRS 8 requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
Chairman of the Group, in order to allocate resources
to segments and to assess their performance. In
contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting”) required an entity to identify two sets of
segments (business and geographical), using a risks and
returns approach, with the entity’s “system of internal
financial reporting to key management personnel”
serving only as the starting point for the identification
of such segments. In the past, the Group’s primary
reporting format was business segments. The application
of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a redesignation of the
Group’s reportable segments as compared with the
primary reportable segments determined in accordance
with HKAS 14.

In prior years, primary segment information was analysed
based on the types of the Group’s operating divisions —
(i) sale and distribution of LPG and (ii) sale of electronic
products. However, information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, being the Chairman of the
Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance focuses more on whether
the nature of the trading of the goods is international
or the PRC. The Group’s three reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 are international nature LPG business
(“International LPG business”), the PRC nature LPG
business (“PRC LPG business”) and sales of electronic
products.

The comparative segment information has been restated
upon the adoption of HKFRS 8.

SERA

KEEK2009F1A1BBEFEREE
ISR EERIE 8L EN | - BB
M RELENFEREREEN A
REARBEBLERRE (AEBEF)
HERBEERAIEERRTGEZAER
EPTAE RS BEE - AR ¢ SLANEE
(BBEERFE 145 D ERE ) B
FEIZRE R & B RE D AERS ki@
B BIABREBEERAS ERUB
WMERBIMERADBRER Y 2 — B2 -
BE AKEEZEEERARNASELED
o HMBRERESSENFEI4RER
ZEEERHEEL - EBRAB BT R
EEBESFERERAEEZERD

BEFE  TBHRENNRAKES
B R BRI — () HE R HRI
RUAR()SEEETFEmMR ° A - MAK
BEFE(REIERERAREI)NERDE
RERRMHEMERCENEEEME S
ZUHERBERNSRHE - RIEFEH
BHRELRNFESH  AREZ=ZKER
DERBEBREERICREB(TEERL
mEM] - PREEERMEREZ(HE
BICREB DARHEETEm °

DRERLRENRABT BT BIREE
A% 8RAFET
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Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segment.

For the year ended December 31, 2009

7. SEEHE)
FHBMARER

T RN RE D 2 AEBBAR
EEDH

EZ20094F 12 A31 HILF/ZE

Sale of
International PRC LPG electronic
LPG business business products
ERRILR HERILR HETT Consolidated
% % ER &8
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue PEUBA 5,019,762 702,860 760,497 6,483,119
Segment profit PERR 159,123 35,817 36,624 231,564
Interest income FIEWA 18,038
Central administration costs and ~ FAEERAREZHE
director’s salaries (24,543)
Change in fair values of foreign ~ AMEERHIAHATEL
currency forward contracts K& 2,607
Interests on bank trust receipts BERBRITERRERT
loans pledged with ERMEER TS
bank deposits (19,677)
Other finance costs B &R A (52,896)
Profit before taxation BRLATE R 155,093
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Segment Information (Continued) 7. REEHE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SBBRARERE(Z)
For the year ended December 31, 2008 EtZ 2008 12 531 HIFF/E
Sale of
International PRC LPG glectronic
LPG business business products
BERILR HERIR HEET Consolidated
2% £ Em A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue PEBA 4,659,340 1,043,001 456,273 6,158,614
Segment profit PR 94,348 24,150 37,900 156,398
Interest income VN 46,324
Central administration costs and ~~ RREERARESHS
director’s salaries (15,053)
Change in fair values of foreign ~ SMEERHIANATE K&
currency forward contracts 11,936
Interests on bank trust receipts ~ AEAFTERNFTET
loans pledged with KEESRFIE
bank deposits (72,760)
Other finance costs HnBEmA (72,723)
Profit before taxation BRG] 54,122
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Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above
is from external customers. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of central administration costs and directors’ salaries,
change in fair values of foreign currency forward
contracts, interest income, interests on bank trust
receipts loans pledged with bank deposits and other
finance costs.

Segment assets and liability

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SWEHE)
SHABARER(E)

2 HHME Y B R LA B RS A
ity BEHBEER © YRR A
DR T ESNBES o 5 HRFE
EPEAPEFREERAREFH
& HNEEBMA DA TELRE - FIS
WA - BRI R R TIS MR
e 2 LB A A R B ER 2 3
7 o

=

N

SHERERAR

InzAEBMEERE

INTREENES
(EERINE

DEEE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

International LPG business Bl R R TS 1,485,223 1,363,397
PRC LPG business FEIR(IERET 333,725 280,762
Sale of electronic products HEETEM 737,843 148,898
Total segment assets BARBEE 2,556,791 1,793,057
Interest in a jointly controlled entity — —ZX R4 T 5L e 6,170 12,142
Deferred tax assets EET TS & E 1,190 1,556
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIR S 194,716 143,756
Pledged bank deposits B IRITER 1,392,355 732,199
Derivative financial instruments ATEBIE T A 6,057 550
Other unallocated assets B RDEEE 69,163 17,003
Consolidated assets REEBE 4,226,442 2,700,263
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Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liability (Continued)

Segment liabilities

a

SWEHE)

SHRBERARE)

DEARR

HK$°000 HK$’000

TFET FEIT

International LPG business B R R ETS 1,010,859 494,751
PRC LPG business BB (LR 70,575 12,705
Sale of electronic products HEBTEM 11,153 13,947
Total segment liabilities moEBaE 1,092,587 521,403
Derivative financial instruments /ﬂiﬂﬂ%lﬁ 3,450 -
Tax liabilities mEas 18,807 5,378
Deferred tax liabilities RIER TS EE 19,187 15,002
Borrowings B 2,070,345 1,419,296
Other unallocated liabilities HEADEEEE 5,849 21,576
Consolidated liabilities FEAaR 3,210,225 1,982,655

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances

and allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments
(other than interest in a jointly controlled entity,
deferred tax assets, bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits,
instruments and certain other assets, certain other

derivative financial

receivables and certain fixed assets); and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, derivative financial instruments,
obligation for put option to minority interests of a

subsidiary and certain other payables).

][ le

i

BRAMDBZHEERD KM

BEBENERZEHRSR(—FKH
Rt ERER  BEERBEE
RiTEHpARE DERRTHE
R PTEMBTARHEME
B *Bf\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂlﬁ% X K BB Bl TE
BERRI)

ERBEIERZHIBORE R
ERERBEE  RITER - T4
E?H%IE: BETHBRRDEBR

ROmHE 2 B AT K ER A7 H A A SREBR
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ELZE2009F 12 431 HIFF/E
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. #EEHE)
Other segment information HttaBEHE
For the year ended December 31, 2009 ALZE 2009 4F 12 A 31 HIFF/E
Sale of
International PRC LPG electronic
LPG business business products
ERRILE HRERILE #EET  Unallocated Consolidated
% % ER 351 &8
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the SrENERTIRSE
measure of segment profit BEMTAZSE
or segment assets:
Capital expenditure and goodwill B4R H k£ 13,174 35,675 - 55 48,904
Depreciation of property, ME B RRELZ
plant and equipment ik 27,524 13,293 149 221 41,187
Amortisation of other intangible ~ H & &z
assets B - 3,271 - - 3,271
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ TBEMNTEEHE
payments for land B 1,987 433 - - 2,420
Amortisation of prepaid lease  SEBMNBEZE
payments for coast B 778 = = - 778
Loss (gain) on disposal and & R -
written off of property, BERSE BB
plant and equipment (EF) 60 (36) 269 3 296
Impairment on goodwil AERE R

recognised - 7,500 - - 7,500
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7. Segment Information (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2008

Amounts included in the SEA BRI
measure of segment profit PEEERITAZ
or segment assets: BF

Capital expenditure and goodwill  &EZAH K2

Adjustment to goodwill HERE

Depreciation of property, 0% BERRENE

plant and equipment
Amortisation of other intangible ~ H & &z

assets B
Amortisation of prepaid lease THEARERE
payments for land 3
Amortisation of prepaid lease  [SEBMNBEZE
payments for coast B
Loss on disposal and written off & RiishnE -
of property, plant and KEREEL

equipment BE

International
LPG business
BERRIER

%

HK$000

THET

82,761
135

24,523

1,958

767

87

a

PRC LPG
business
HER{CR
%
HK$'000
FAT

18,607

12,449
2,347

358

REEHE)
Htip¥\EIE(E)
HZ 20084 12 31 HIFFZ
Sale of
electronic
products
HEET Unallocated Consolidated
Efm KA Ee
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
6 219 101,493
- - 135
10 485 37,467
- - 2,347
- - 2,316
— - 767
= - 95
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ELZE2009F 12 431 HIFF/E
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHEE)
Geographical information HEZFE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and AEBZREEBURES - FE - F
the PRC, Thailand and other countries. B R HABR o
The Group’s revenue from operations from external AREBIINBEPEB ZWARBBHIZ
customers and information about its non-current assets BEMBAESS ZIERTEE B
by geographical location of the assets are detailed AT
below:
Revenue Non-current assets
KA JEREN R E
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EThE ZETNF —ETAE —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT FET FEIT

Hong Kong BB 402,215 570,808 10,878 15,857
The PRC s 3,639,413 3,405,935 849,974 805,070
Thailand [ 1,740,874 1,134,286 — —
Other countries H B 700,617 1,047,585 46 440
Total EEr 6,483,119 6,158,614 860,898 821,367

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets. Kiet  FERBEET CIEELEFFEE -
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7. Segment Information (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are
as follows:

SWEHE)
FREEEFMRH

UTEFPRERFETERMASENE
#EI10% PA LRI -

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEiT FET

Customer A' ZEEA 1,178,789 856,741

Customer B' =5 980,400 683,196

Customer C? BFEC? 760,564 451,090
! Revenue from LPG business ! BAE R ZER WA

Revenue from electronic products

Other Income

Interest earned on bank deposits RITIFEAFIE
Net exchange gain [ 5, Uy o V5 5R
Others EAh

2 BrEMBEA

Hftig A

HK$’000 HK$°000
FExT T
18,038 46,324
6,721 118,633
3,270 3,742

28,029 163,699
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For the year ended December 31, 2009

HZE2009F 12 A31 HiFF/E
9. Other Finance Costs 9. HtmME/AE

HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Interests on bank borrowings ARAFTREHER ZIRTT
wholly repayable within five BEHFE
years 30,483 41,461
Bank charges related to bank BEBRITERARITE
trust receipts loans pledged WIEE R
with bank deposits 2,410 19,198
Other bank charges HiR1TE A 22,406 18,248
Less: Amounts capitalised - v e (2,403) (6,184)
52,896 72,723
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from ABERGEEREREZHEMEAN—IE
a bank loan borrowed for the construction of gas plant RITEE  HEERKAEFAEARL -

and facilities in Zhuhai.
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10. Taxation Charge

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Other regions in the PRC PR R A 3 [
Current tax BIERF: 18 39,915 3,180
Underprovision of prior years BEFEEETRE 4,982 =
44,897 3,180

Deferred tax IRAEFIE

Current year REFEELE (2,255) (1,783)
Attributable to a change in tax rate FR AR SR B A B A - (186)
(2,255) (1,969)
42,642 1,211

On June 26, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the
year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
January 1, 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, ¥8aiR (3K8) BRAR (“¥1/8 (X&) ") is
entitled to exemption from the PRC enterprise income
tax for the two years starting from its first profit-making
year, followed by a 50% tax relief for the next three
years. The tax charge provided has been made after
taking these tax incentive into account. The first profit
making year of ¥1/8 (¥5)&) is 2006.

R 2008F6 A26H @ BB A SR IB
(2008 F W AMEBIEZR) - EH BIEMR
2008 FE 2009 F AR EE RS - B
AIFIERER17.5% FARE16.5% - A
it BEFE mmﬁmliﬁmmﬂ’é
R AR E16.5% 51 &

BEPRCEMSREA(EEMESH
EDREEMBBIEBREIED - B
BARMA2008F 1 A1 BEERZHE
5525% o

B IE F B B R E RG] - 318 8 R (R
AR ARFECGRE) ) RESF
HENE—FRRBENMEZEHRETE
EBR - B =F 0248 50% KR
mﬁﬁﬁ ERIERGETR - ZEBBE

BEFEERN - FERNE)NE—F
z%frlﬁéiﬁé 2006 °
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BHZ2009F 12 A31 HIFFZE

10. Taxation Charge (Continued)

Except for the profit generated by a subsidiary in Hong
Kong is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward,
there is no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made in the consolidated financial statements as
the Company and other subsidiaries had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

10.

MIASIH (&)

BB B P8 A BB A #0032 SR K
ERBEBEEIN  ARARE REHK
BRARGEEBLERRTEAE - Atk
EMBHRRLEFENEHAELE
o

FRELY BEL T REA R AR
R ZEFISENT :

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#T FEIT
Profit before taxation BR 5 Al A 155,093 54,122
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% BARHF K 25% E‘I‘fﬁz%ﬁf& 38,773 13,531
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR Sz H 2 7552
for tax purpose 8,344 8,370
Tax effect of income not taxable for  HBERFHW A Z TS L
tax purpose (8,027) (4,749)
Tax effect of profit which are MG e MBS ER af 2
exempted from tax or under M
tax concession (25,244) (25,896)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIEEE 2 BB E
recognised 26,631 10,290
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIER —HDM%ET MHEREZ
differences not recognised R E 858 308
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ) Ff & Bl R TR
recognised TRIEE B (3,675) (819)
Underprovision of prior year BEFERETRE 4,982 -
Effect of different tax rates of RARNEREEEE TRER
subsidiaries operating in WEB AR TR Rz ZE
other jurisdictions = (10)
Decrease in opening deferred tax BR| & AR A 2R Rk D B BUR AE
liability resulting from a s B E BRI
decrease in applicable tax rate - 186
Taxation charge for the year FAFIEL H 42,642 1,211

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise
income tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation
of the Group is substantially based is used.

Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set
out in note 32.

EANRESAEETIZL S EERE
BRI R (PEREEMEHR) -

BEERIEEER BEZFBHNHE
32 -
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11. Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for land (included in
administrative expenses)
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast (included in
administrative expenses)
Amortisation of other intangible
assets (included in cost of sales)
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation for property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal and write-off of
property, plant and equipment
Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:
— LPG vessel
— Premises
Sub-contracting fee
Staff costs
Directors’ fees (note 12)
Directors’ other emoluments (note 12)
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes excluding HK$81,000
(2008: HK$60,000) included in
directors’ emoluments
Others

11.

FREMS R TFIRE

T TR E SRR
(BREETHRHA)

B EANEE RS
(BREETHRHA)

H it T B B 5
(BREHEREA)
ZEEN I =

W HaEk

RETE

& RMEEYE - HaEs R
Eadi e g
REMOHERS

— RIEEM
— EF
=B E
BB A
5w (K712
EEHMME (AE12)
Fr 81,000 77T (2008 £ :
60,000 L) E 5T A
B S 2 RIREF
AT IR
HAtb

FRIRATEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
2,420 2,316
778 767
3,271 2,347
2,705 2,087
41,187 37,467
296 95
1,676 19,592
2,870 1,874
1,165 1,047
330 330
8,273 6,214
1,701 1,136
20,861 21,840
31,165 29,520
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EXle

12. Directors’ Emoluments 12.

each of the 11 BTk T 114(2(20084F : 8L )E=

ZB2m

The emoluments paid or payable to
(2008: 8) directors were as follows:

Chiu Cheung
Sing Shum Siu Kwan  Chan Yuk
Shum ~ Chung, Cen Chun, Wu Cai  KaFai, Hung, Wai, Xu
SiuHung  Raymond Ziniu  Lawrence Hong Cho Xikun Brian Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe
0 #RE &% ¥ MEE BB BEd RER  Bait
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T fE#rT FET TET FET FET  FET  TET  FET  TET  FET  FET
(Note) (Note) Note)
\’*ﬁ?/" (f f?‘ ( ’ﬂj‘
Fees fg = - - - - - - - 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments Ko
Salaries and other bengfits £oRAtRA 3,000 1,500 1,054 325 325 3 810 405 - - - 8,192
Contrbutions to retement RAVER S
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 1 7 7 - - - 81
Total emoluments fifa 3,012 1,512 1,066 337 337 720 877 42 130 100 100 8,603
Chiu Cheung Chan
Sing Shum Kwan Yuk Total
Shum — Chung, Cen Chun, Wu Hung, Wal, Xu 2008
SuHung  Raymond Znu Lawence HongCho  Anthony  Benedict  Mngshe —ZENE
0 #AR A7E 2% HEE  RSE REE BEf s
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
7ér At TEn  TEr  TEn TEr  FEn TET FEn
Fees e = = = = = 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments Ko
Salaries and other benefis £ RAMER 3,000 1,500 1,004 325 325 - - - 6,154
Contributions to refirement RIVEHHEL
benefits schemes 12 12 1 12 12 - - - 60
Total emoluments ik 3012 1512 1,016 337 337 130 100 100 6,044
Note: The disclosed emoluments for individual director Bt ERES 2 EBEMS T AER 2009

FoRA1SHEZEEEHK 2B Wk
FEWEE -

represent the emoluments received or receivable after the
appointment of directorship on June 18, 2009.

No director waived any emoluments during both years. RFE A EEEREE A -



O the.
e MR

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 R EBAR A A

For the year ended December 31, 2009

ELZE2009F 12 A 31 HIFF/E

13. Employees’ Emoluments 13. EREl&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments AKEBSEZEERRHFALTEESBEAR A
in the Group, five (2008: three) are directors of the E£(2008%F :3%)  AM&FBER
Company whose emoluments are included in the above SRR ERRZEETIR 2009 F 6
disclosures and two of them were appointed on June B18BEZF - RIFE12FTIHE 2 %
18, 2009. The directors’ emoluments disclosed in note MEFZREZESZ 2 S TIAER 2009
12 for these two newly appointed directors represent F6H18AZ BN EWRIHE - L&
the emoluments received or receivable by them after HETEENEHE2009F12 A31 H Ik
June 18, 2009. The total emoluments of these two newly FEZOWEEKBS AN T

appointed directors received and receivable for the year
ended December 31, 2009 are as follows:

2009
ZEZThE
HK$°000
FETT
As directors’ emoluments “EESEZH&
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 1,582
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RIREAFTEIER R 13
As employees’ emoluments EEEEZEH&
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 413
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RIREAFTEIE R 11

2,019
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13. Employees’ Emoluments (Continued) 13. EE#M& (&)
The emoluments are within the following bands: EHEMSHN T
No. of
employees
ER®A
2009
k- 1582
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 7T £1,500,000/8 7T 1
The emoluments of the remaining two individuals HeEma A TREZ2008412 A31 H
received and receivable for the year ended December EFEZEWREKMSIAT

31, 2008 were as follows:

2008
—ET)\F
HK$’000
FETT
Salaries and allowances e &oERL 1,900
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RRABEFIFTEIH R 24
1,924
The emoluments of each of the two individuals were ZMB A TS B Z2ME19 411,000,000

below HK$1,000,000. PBTT ©



- e
s & dia'nn;a-'-:;—“‘g_"l"

4R e B S M o

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1&8REBAR AR

0 -._.f@fgblidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2009
BHZ2009F 12 A31 HIFFZE

14. Dividend

14. BRR

HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
2008 final dividend recognised as FANER BN IR Z2008F
distribution during the year — HK0.3  REAR% &
cents (2007 final dividend: HK1.1 — FR%0.38 1l (20074
cents) per share REAAZ B+ 1.17840) 2,890 5,298

Subsequent to December 31, 2009, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HK1.0 cent (2008: HKO0.3
cents) per share be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members on June 8, 2010. This final dividend is subject
to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. On April 12, 2010, the number
of shares issued and fully paid is 1,155,853,374.

R2009F12A31H B EEEZIR
R2010F6 A8 H &5 A QA REH
MzARERERERARE - B
K B 1.0 11(2008 4 : 0.3/ Il ) = It
REBREAGFKRENREERRABER
e LBBEK HFAUEE - R20105F4
A12B EBTRBREZRMNEE B
1,155,853,374 %
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15. Earnings per Share 15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company is based on the following data:

wBiRET

ARBZ EBESHBARGERER
NESERNTIZ T 5 BIEAE

HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FHEIT
Profit attributable to the equity holders & A &I AEH A FE(E R
of the parent for the purposes of basic ~ st EEFREAR K s
and diluted earnings per share el il 112,451 52,911
Weighted average number of ordinary REsT EGRERR R K
shares for the purpose of basic and DN S 39 i 28 AR AR 2K
diluted earnings per share 975,483,511 623,672,335

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the
open offer on October 13, 2008.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s option because
the exercise price of the share options outstanding is
higher than the average market price for shares for the
year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

et E B EA K #5885 8 mk
P 2008F10 H13H 2 A EE
HEAEE o

AEEREERFWERRITERLQR
ZEBRERARTEBRENTEESR
#H = 20094F & 20084F 12 A31H Ik F
ERRD FHmIEE -
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. ¥k - MBREW

Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  (Gaspumps and
Construction Leasehold Plant and plant and and equipment Motor
in progress Buildings improvements  machinery facilities ~ equipment  &fl BE vehicles
ERIE B% HEWRRE  BBRBE 2 RERBE  RRRER Rl il |
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000
FAT 7AT FAT 7AT FAT 7AT FAT 7AT FAT
COsT i3
At January 1, 2008 H2008E1A1A 3176 16,869 217 1163 396,905 124,901 10,189 10727 566,047
Additions hE 10,994 - 415 478 56,842 15,674 708 2641 87752
Transfer g2 (3,083) 3,083 - - - - - - -
Disposals and wrte-off HERHH = = (9) - - (19) (325) (173) (610)
Exchange realignment EiEE 307 1,086 - 73 1379 7770 551 01 24,283
At December 1, 2008 R200812A318 11,394 21,038 2439 1714 467542 148,326 11123 13896 677472
Additions i 8,865 - 137 5 4319 3737 655 1,182 18,900
Acquired on acquistion of a subsidiary  WEKBARHE = - - - 8,704 18787 % 5 2574
Transfer = (754) 90 - - (166) 762 (762) - -
Disposals and wrte-off HERHH - - - (452) - (154) (449) (730) (1,785
Exchange realignment ER % 3 - 2 383 253 15 2 73
At December 31, 2009 20005127318 19,581 21,993 2576 1,269 475,782 17,71 10,606 14,429 7897
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ H&REE
At January 1, 2008 H200851 418 - 2363 1,451 137 2,502 21,455 6,019 3,008 64935
Provided for the year ERRE - 1950 43 106 0,211 11,63 849 ANl 37467
Eliminated on olsposals and write-off ~ AHERMER £ - - 1) = = U] (204) (120) (432)
Exchange realignment FL - 173 - 7 1,07 1,696 32 20 3465
At December 31, 2008 1200812A31A - 4,486 1913 250 45,854 40119 6,686 5,267 105,435
Provided for the year ERER - 2036 71 2% 23104 12472 102 2152 4187
Transfer &2 - 62 - - (62 - - - -
Eliminated on olsposals and write-off ~ AHERMER £ = - - (189) = (102 (304) (672) (1,351)
Exchange realignment EiAE - 10 - - 5 73 10 9 15
At December 31, 2009 H2009512A31A - 6,504 2,084 293 68949 53222 7528 6,756 145,426
CARRYING VALUES i
At December 31, 2009 H2000E12731H 19,531 16,399 492 976 406,833 118,489 3,078 1673 572411
At December 31, 2008 12008E12A31A 11,394 16,552 526 1,464 401,688 107547 4,297 8,629 572,087
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Gas plant and facilities

Gas pumps and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the

Over the term of the lease

20% to 33'/,%

5% to 33'/;%

Over the shorter of the
lease term of coast use
right and land use right,
or 20 years.

10% to 33"/,%
15% to 16%/3,%

16°/,% to 33'/,%

PRC, and are held on land under medium term leases.

The gas plant under construction are situated outside
Hong Kong, in the PRC, and are held under medium

term leases.

LPG bottles of approximately HK$5,393,000 (2008:

HK$2,454,000) included in gas pumps and equipment
are leased to customers for short term to generate rental
income. The rental income generated was approximately
HK$9,025,000 (2008: nil) for the year ended December

31, 2009.

16. 5k - BRI ()

BF
HEMEEE
Was MRkl
R K R it

RR K&
B KEMRE

e

% 49 5
20% % 33'/,%
5% %= 33"/,%
B8 =
o+ b {5 A A
FA#)F HAsk
Z+FHz
ENSES
10% & 33"/,%
15% & 16%/,%

16%/,% % 33"/,%

BF IR E(FERI) - WA H

B+ EFHA -

ERERBEHURTE(FAREIN) A

REARAORA -

RRKZHEIET Z 45,393,000 7T
(20084F : 2,454,000 7T ) 2 B AL &R
TAGHEAERTES  UEIES K
A RE E2009%F 12 A31H IF F &
FTEE 2 & WA #E9,025,0007% T

(2008 4F : 4##) o
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17. Prepaid Lease Payments for Land

17. TR FGEERR

HK$°000 HK$°000
F#TT FET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments  AN&EE 2 + I8 & 708
for land comprise: B
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, R HE (F#&EIN) - AR
in the PRC under medium term HAFH 2 L e
leases 68,814 56,689
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  HIREBHIDHT
Non-current asset EMENEE 66,164 54,341
Current asset mENEE 2,650 2,348
68,814 56,689
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18. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast 18. BEMFAEERR

HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments  ZAN&EE 7 /5= TENHE R E
for coast comprise: B
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC AHE (FiHEIN - WIARER
under medium term leases s b= ¥ = Ird=y= 12,290 13,049
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  1ZEHKI DT :
Non-current asset IEMENEE 11,512 12,271
Current asset mMENEE 778 778
12,290 13,049
The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the BEBNEERBEIERKE 28R
rights to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to FItE - B3199941 H1 Bk - HEH

28 years, starting from January 1, 1999. AF20FFE284F ©
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19. Goodwill 10. BHE
HK$’000
FHET
COST )% 3
At January 1, 2008 20081 81H 102,623
Acquisition of additional interest in a Wi — B AR 2 B MER
subsidiary 13,741
Adjustment to goodwill due to utilisation — B)FAUKFERTTIIEEE 2
of pre-acquisition tax losses SRR (135)
Exchange realignment VE 5, 5 7,207
At December 31, 2008 MR2008F12 H31H 123,436
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) W BB AR (B/:£34) 4,538
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE (7,500)
Exchange realignment M 5, e 85
At December 31, 2009 R2009F12 H31H 120,509
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At December 31, 2009 2009412 A31H 120,509
At December 31, 2008 R2008%12 A31H 123,436

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set
out above have been allocated to eight (2008: seven)
individual cash generating units (CGUs) in the LPG
segment. Total seven (2008: six) CGUS are included
in the segment of PRC LPG business. The remaining
one (2008: one) CGU is included in the segment of

international LPG business.

RREANANE  EXFHEZEAEEE
BERERIEIEBITEZ8E(2008
F7EEBBRESELENM - RPBER
fEREB D BB 7E(20084F : 61#)
HWEEEENAM- % F11E(20084F : 1
@) It ABIBR R REREHHE -
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19. Goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the
management of the Group determines that there is an
impairment of HK$7,500,000 for the goodwill of one
CGU (“Impaired CGU”) and there is no impairment
of the other CGUs containing goodwill with indefinite
useful lives. Due to the turnover of the impaired CGU
was below management’s expectation, the management
revised its cash flow projections as at December 31,
2009 with the key assumptions set out below.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above
CGUs and their major underlying assumptions are
summarised below:

The recoverable amounts of these units have been
determined based on a 20-year value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a 5-year period, and discount rate of 14.5% (2008:
15.83%). The cash flows beyond financial budgets are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate ranging from
3% to 12% (2008: 10%) for a 5 year period. The cash
flows in the following 10-year period are extrapolated
using a nil growth rate. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations related to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. Except for the impairment of
HK$7,500,000 mentioned above for the impaired CGU,
management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

19.

mEE)

HE2009F 12 A31 HILFE - K&EE
EREN—AREELABNZEEET
7,500,000 7T 2 R EBE( 2R ER
SCEABMN])  MAERAERFER
B HEMRSEASMBERE - AR
ERERCESEMZ EEHENAIE
B2EH HEEEBEE HR2009
F12H31AZREREEA  ER 2
FERBEIA T °

NERGEABMZAEESERET
ZREKREBE T

ZEBEMZARE AR EEES
H20FEBEET - 2 AFAEEED
HEZSFYHREERF 2R RETE
B K2 BE3E R 14.5% (2008 4F : 15.3% )&t
HoBBEMEBERZAERENSF
Hi 7 B E R R3% % 12% (2008 F :
10%)HEH - BER1I0FZ2HERENUT
R R - EREESARA RHER
BEZTEZEMTZERIABIEHEETR
BRREF  ZEEERBEEMZB
FEEREEIAMEN 2 MEEEME
e BEEMRE REABRERSE
A B {7 2 7,500,000 T Z MAEIN 7%
EHRBVEFMWEBZ e E R - £
ERLSBESELEENZARMERBE
SEEBMZERIRE S o
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20. HftEEEE

20. Other Intangible Assets

Distribution Business Leasing
network license agreements
bodcEE RBEER HAGR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
78T 78T FET FET
COST 5%
At January 1, 2008 72008F1H1H 2,286 3,935 12,871 19,092
Exchange adjustments P 5 266 228 913 1,407
At December 31, 2008 M2008F12H31H 2,552 4163 13,784 20,499
Acquired on acquisition of WEE—E R RS
a subsidiary (note 34) (B7#34) - 3,470 - 3,470
Exchange adjustments fE 5 AR 3 8 22 33
At December 31, 2009 72009512 A31H 2,655 7,641 13,806 24,002
AMORTISATION AND MR E
IMPAIRMENT
At January 1, 2008 72008F1H1H 67 413 1,762 2,242
Charge for the year FERTH 70 432 1,845 2,347
Exchange adjustments b 5 SR 5 31 135 171
At December 31, 2008 200812 831H 142 876 3,742 4,760
Charge for the year FAZH 255 590 2,426 3,271
Exchange adjustments P H AR 1 2 7 10
At December 31, 2009 72009512 A31H 398 1,468 6,175 8,041
CARRYING VALUES REE
At December 31, 2009 M2009F12B31H 2,157 6,173 7,631 15,961
At December 31, 2008 7200812 A31H 2,410 3,287 10,042 15,739

Distribution network, the business license and the
subcontracting agreements were acquired from third
party in business combination.

DHEBE  EBEREARE R H

HE=ZDEBAWEBEA -
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20. Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

21.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives.
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the following periods:

Distribution network 10 years
Business license 10 years
Leasing agreements 5 — 9 years

Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity

20. HtvizRE (2

tBPEEEBRAIERFY - &5
BVEENEREENT 2 BRE#H

p=llle
N}
(i

7 AR 104
KRR 106
HE % 5—9%F

21. REREHERERS

THE GROUP
EEE
2009
—ETNFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ETT FET
Cost of unlisted investment in a  REFZHIERE 2 IE L
jointly controlled entity FEKAR 13,073 13,073
Share of post-acquisition profit Fr{g g AR SA (Ei8) -
(losses), impairment loss and BB B8 & B At 2 A
other comprehensive income (6,903) (931)
6,170 12,142

As at December 31, 2009, the Group had interest in the
following jointly controlled entity:

Form of Principal
business Country of place of
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation
AER S RERBER ERER TEERME
EMmREIMRARAR  Incorporated PRC PRC
(M%) (Note) (Hfzt) Bith i Gl

MR2009F12A31H » "EEHEE T
Bl R E RS 2 S

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital

Fully paid up
registered capital
EREERES

held by the Group
FEE PR
HFmELs

Nature of business

REHE

RMB2,250,000
2,250,000 A &

49% Sale and distribution
of LPG

HERDHRILR
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21.

Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity
(Continued)

Note:

The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its jointly
controlled entity is in proportion to its ownership interest
after the sub-contracting period mentioned in the following
paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qingxin Bai
Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company Limited (“BFY”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the joint venture partner
of ##1 (the “Venturer”) on November 3, 2006, the operation of
%7 has been sub-contracted to BFY with a sub-contracting
period of 8 years.

As at December 31, 2008, included in the cost of unlisted
investment in a jointly controlled entity is goodwill of
approximately HK$6,139,000 arising on acquisition of a jointly
controlled entity in prior years.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the jointly controlled
entity and its major underlying assumptions are summarized
below:

The recoverable amount of the jointly controlled entity has been
determined based on a 20-year value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on the financial
budget approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and discount rate of 14.5% (2008: 15.3%). The cash flow
beyond financial budget is extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 5% (2008: 10%) for a 5 year period. The cash flow in
the following 10-year period is extrapolated using a nil growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflow/outflow which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the jointly controlled entity’s past performance and
management expectations for market development.

An impairment loss of approximately HK$6,139,000 (2008: nil)
was provided for the interest in a jointly controlled entity.

21.

REFARNERES(Z)
e
AEM SRR R A2 ST

BIATBE e 2 A B B E A sz b
KzrEmfIEtE -

BEAARZ2EMNBARBHSRAEE A
MIETERAR([EBXERBHZAEE
H([AEE )P 2006%F11 A3HEI M 2 1%
FBHZEBEANATERE  INHEA
81F o

R2008F 12 A31H @ IELEMEER —HH
FAEHEB2KACBEAEFERE—/H

R 125 I 2 B B BT = A 2 496,139,000 7% 7T
g

FHEHRE %Hfﬁ“Z‘MﬁZ@%ﬁEZ
Ix*ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ”‘ U

HEEHEE 2 AT RESEIRETEES
ﬁﬁzoifﬂar%m ZAERAEEEE A
Z5FWBEERP 2H S RETEN KR
R 14.5% (2008 % : 15.3%):TE - BB 5
EEE RS RE NS FH 2 BETERES5%
(20084 : 10%) &7 - FER10F 2R &
ENTEREREN - AARLSRAREIE
HAEEZTEZHGETERILEHERE
REEF ZEHERRBEBMZBEEE
REBIBPIE 2B ERMIEL °

AEBERARENERESARED
6,139,000 % 7T (2008 F : #& ) 2 5 (B & 8 &
1 e
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21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity
(Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s jointly controlled entity which is accounted for
using the equity method is set out below:

21. REAREFERER(Z)

AEBUAER AT E 2 ARESE
BUBEMRERIIMT

HK$°000 HK$°000

TFET FET

Current assets MENE E 745 872
Non-current assets EMBEE 6,125 5,774
Current liabilities nBAE (194) (643)
Income WA 19,647 16,143
Expenses S (19,480) (16,503)

22. Other Assets 22, HthEE

HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Deposit for establishment of a RABIKL AR ZE® (Hiita)
company in the PRC (Note a) 68,111 —
Rental deposit for LPG vessel BiERMEEZ S (HiEb)
(Note b) - 15,088
Deposit for acquisition of equity  WHEKBAREZ 2184
interest of a subsidiary (Note c) (KiEe) - 16,313
68,111 31,401
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22. Other Assets (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amount represents the deposit paid by the Group
for establishing a company in the PRC (the “Associate
Company”). The Associate Company will be engaged
in operating LPG vessel. Based on the agreement and
supplemental agreement entered into by the Group and
an independent third party (the “Major Shareholder”) in
year 2009, the Associate Company with total registered
capital of RMB600,000,000 will be established. The
Group agreed to contribute RMB120,000,000 and own
20% equity interest in the Associate Company. The
deposit of approximately HK$68,111,000 (equivalent to
RMB60,000,000) was paid to the Major Shareholder. Up
to the reporting date, the Associate Company has not
been established in the PRC.

Due to the dispute between the Group and the lessor,
the lease agreement was terminated and a refund of
approximately HK$10,898,000 was received by the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2009. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the recoverability of
the remaining balance of approximately HK$4,190,000 is
uncertain and remote, thus the amount is written off.

This relates to deposit paid for acquisition of the entire
equity interest in KEM=FEHRRBRAA ([KE]), a
company established with limited liability under the laws
of the PRC. The Group acquired 100% of the equity
interest in %4 was completed on October 1, 2009 and
the details are disclosed in note 34.

22, Hthig&E(Z

(a)

EEFENARNEERFBEKYA A
(MgeEraHzEffiEs - BE QA
BRERIEIMZEE - BREAEE
BB E=H([EZRKRE )R 2009 F
R kAT —EREm
&R A A R 600,000,000 7T 2 Hf &
ARBEKY - AEBREBEIEAR
# 120,000,000 7T © I # & Bt & A A
Z220% P& A #E 2% o #768,111,00078
(& R A R #60,000,0007T ) Z
REEXMNFEERRE - HEREH
H o B AR AR PR BIRL ©

HRAEEEHBAAMZ4S B
EMBECERILE AEEERE
FE2009F12831H IEFEEE Y
10,898,000 7t Z iR K o AR &l Z
EERBE % F#4,190,000% T 2
5k 2 A U ] B NRE E SO SE -
It - BREFIEE T A o

ZRIE R B R R A B
MR AEEREEATXKEZH=BR
REBRQAR(ER)EDEREMNZ
A& o AEBE R 2009F 101 H %
RRUEEIR B 2 100% IR ANHERS - BREE
BAKIFE34 R EE -
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23.

Inventories

23.

R

HK$°000 HK$’000

FAET FET

LPG BIER 110,786 51,709
Electronic products EFEMR 315,060 85,957
425,846 137,666

The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year
amounted to approximately HK$6,087,801,000 (2008:
HK$5,931,218,000).

FRAFAGZEGZEARZRZEE
B 7 #9 76,087,801,0007%8 JL(2008 £ :
5,931,218,000/8 7T ) °

121
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24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other

Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments

24.

Bl R BER - EURRE - HfthfE

iR - ReERRAMHRR

HK$’000 HK$°000

FETT FAETL

Trade debtors FEUE 5 BRK 762,023 424,993
Bills receivable FEUR =55 - 22,678
762,023 447,671

The Group allows an average credit period of 120 days.
The bills receivable are matured within the range of 30
to 90 days for the year ended December 31, 2008. The
following is an aged analysis of trade debtors and bills

receivables at the end of the reporting period:

AEBEBZFHEEHRHA120K HE
2008 12 A31 HIEFEREKERE 2 |
HBEHNFI0ENH - REEREH
5 52 45 B B W 22 5 BR B I B R = AR % B

BT

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET TETT

0 to 30 days 0& 30K 362,059 134,335
31 to 60 days 31 260X 231,479 30,578
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 29,860 279,567
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 84,618 1,993
Over 180 days 238 180~ 54,007 1,198
762,023 447,671

Included in the Group’s trade debtors, are debtors of
approximately HK$365,380,000 (2008: HK$122,898,000)
denominated in USD, which is not the functional

currency of the relevant group entities.

AEBZEKRESZRERLD
365,380,000 % 7T.(2008 : 122,898,000
BLIRELEER LETBERHEBE

BERINEER
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24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other

Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments
(Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$136,651,000 (2008: HK$3,191,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical
default of payments by the respective customers. The
average age of these receivables is 138 days (2008: 167
days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

24.

Bl BER - BURE - HfhfE
WER - BERAMRER(E)

RBER AEERNEKE S ERH
b 42 8RB %136,651,00078 7T
(2008 : 3,191,000/ 7T ) B & 5 fE U BR
AE R BEAREBERIERERELE
B AEBWEFEEMBERZSRER
IR ERIERY - AEE 2 EIKE
SEREEHBEREGREALARERS
NESEEEPRETELRKIE - 25
JE U AR 3R A 39 BR #R 5 188 X (2008 ¢
167 K) o

EBREXRFEZELRE S ERZER

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET TETT

61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 137 =
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 82,850 1,993
181 to 365 days 181 £365K 53,664 1,198
Total &a&F 136,651 3,191

During the year ended December 31, 2009, trade
receivables of approximately HK$2,256,000 (2008:
HK$17,167,000) were written off to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income due to the default in
principal payments or under liquidation. The Group did
not hold any collateral over these balances.

REZE2009F 12 A1 BIEFEEF © 4
2,256,000/ 7C(2008 : 17,167,000
TO) 2 TEWE 5 BR KA 5 R REEE Sk
HRERMENIGE 2 ERE R T M
i AEBWEFESEMEARZEREK
Z SRR B RSIKEY) -
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24.

25.

26.

Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other
Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments
(Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2008, other
receivables of approximately HK$1,115,000 were written
off to consolidated statement of comprehensive income
due to the default in principal payments or under
liquidation. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. No other receivable was written off
during the year ended December 31, 2009.

Included in other debtors, there is a trade deposit paid
to a supplier of approximately HK$541,197,000 (2008:
HK$368,657,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG
which will be delivered within one year.

Amount Due from a Jointly Controlled Entity

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The amount is aged within 30 days (2008:
within 30 days) at the end of the reporting period.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and
Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
deposits have been pledged to secure short-term bank
loans, and are therefore classified as current assets.
The remaining pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,392,355,000 (2008: HK$7,012,000) carry at
floating interest rates which ranged from 0.01% to
2.96% (2008: 0.01% to 4.45%) per annum and will
be released upon settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings. During the year ended December 31, 2008,
the pledged bank deposits included an amount of
approximately HK$725,187,000 carried at fixed interest
rates which ranged from 3.42% to 4.14% per annum and
will be released upon settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings.

24.

25.

26.

Bl BER - BURE - HfhfE
WER - BERAMRER(E)

REZE2008F 12 A31 AILLFEH » 4
1,115,000% 7T 2 E o FE U BR 3% A 5 5
REEEEFEXARBSRMERNGE SR
FR SR PSS - AEEI &S A T
B8 1A 5% 55 H {th 8 Uk BR R HY 42 1R ok 3K
) o RE 22009F 12 A31H It F &
R RS L PR LR B o

EEMEWIEERT BEm—(HERS
> 5 #1541,197,00078 7£(2008 £ :
368,657,000 7L ) M E Z L BE R
R TR —FREE o

Bl RZEHNRIEZRE

BRAREER - B WANBRE
B - REMYPRZERBZRETIN
F30RA (2008 FF : 30AA) °

EERRTER BTRBRRAS

BEEFEEAEEANERITEEM
ERTIRIT2ERK - FREER ARG
RERTEN  BmMoBEARBEE -
g 2 BIRMIEITE34Y 1,392,355,000
7 70 (2008 4F ¢ 7,012,000 7T ) 1% ¥ &)
FHM K A0.01%%E2.96% (2008 4F :
0.01% £ 4.45%) * W HF N EEH R
ITIE AR BR - MELZ= 2008 & 12 A 31
BIEFE  BEERTERBEENT
3.42% F 4.14% 2 [E & F FI L5 B 2 3K
TE 49725,187,0008 70 » Wi N EEAR
BRITIE BRI o
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26. Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and

Cash (Continued)

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 0.72% (2008: 0.01% to 1.71%) per
annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the RMB pledged
bank deposits of approximately HK$1,343,238,000
(2008: HK$686,078,000) were pledged for the bank trust
receipts loans.

At the end of the reporting period, the pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$1,486,256,000 (2008: HK$820,365,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s bank
balances, are approximately HK$60,093,000 (2008:
HK$42,315,000) denominated in USD, which is not the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

26. CEARTER BITEGRAS

(%)

RITE IR F0.01% £ 0.72% (2008

F001%E1.71%) 2 T %5 F X &
8 o

2 3R K0 #91,343,238,00078 JT
(2008 4F : 686,078,000 7t ) 2 & #
ARERITFERE B ETUIEEE KT
TERTT -

REWMAR - EEBRITFEARRIBRITE
& M IR & #91,486,256,000/% 7T (2008
 : 820,365,000 7T ) LA A B # 7
B TAAERERAEMEE. &
& [H 2 #R17 4 #2 HF 4960,093,000 % JT
(2008 % : 42,315,000 7T ) bA 3= 7T %)
B UTBREEESEER 2 E
,ﬂ_qg °
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27.

28.

Trade Creditors and Bills Payable 27. EFNEAERREMSRE
The aged analysis of trade creditors is as follows: FERTE SRRFIRRR DTN :
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 437,473 141,056
31 to 60 days 31 260X 127,555 —
61 to 90 days 61 290K 36,155 —
91 to 180 days 91 180K 8 —
Over 180 days Bid 180Kk 418 404
601,609 141,460
The aged analysis of bills R EBIRRR DT
payables is as follows: LU
0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 43,086 149,304
31 to 60 days 31 260K 92,109 31,823
61 to 90 days 61 290K 137,025 —
91 to 180 days 91 180K 80,172 —
352,392 180,627
954,001 322,087
Included in the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable REBEZENESRANEMNEZEERFRY
are amounts of approximately HK$588,624,000 (2008: 588,624,000 7 Jt.(2008 : 265,595,000
HK$265,595,000) denominated in USD, which is not the BIL)EBETLERE  WETBEBREBE
functional currency of the relevant group entities. BEE I EE -
Other Creditors and Accrued Charges 28. HfthfE AR B EE & A

At December 31, 2009, the other creditor included a
refundable deposit of approximately HK$40,000,000
(2008: nil). The amount is unsecured and bears interest
at 2.42% per annum. The details of the subscription are
disclosed in note 42.

R2009F 12 A31 H @ EtERMKRKE
& #940,000,0007% 7C(2008 FF © ) 2
ARERS - ZEFEAERBRIRE
FE2.42% 518 - REZFIBRKMIFE42
R -
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29. Borrowings 29. &R

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&r FET
Bank trust receipts loans RITERBIEER 532,174 587,732
Bank trust receipts loans IRITEFERIEE R
(pledged with RMB bank (BEAAREERITIF K
deposits) {EHE ) 1,362,408 677,602
Other bank loans HaiRITER 175,763 152,156
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 1,806
2,070,345 1,419,296
Analysed as: PaRiv=E
Secured SRRl 1,511,380 936,954
Unsecured Fidsi g 558,965 482,342
2,070,345 1,419,296
Carrying amount repayable: FERTBREI(E -
Within one year —FR 2,052,545 1,309,045
More than one year, but not BE—FEETZRMRE
exceeding two years - 48,633
More than two years, but not BEMFENZRAF
exceeding five years 17,800 61,618
2,070,345 1,419,296
Less: Amounts due within one J - RBRIRB B EMMTTRR
year shown under current —F R EIER
liabilities (2,052,545) (1,309,045)
17,800 110,251
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29. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank trust receipts loans include approximately
HK$1,511,037,000 (2008: HK$838,081,000) fixed-rate
borrowings which are due within one year and carry
average interest at 1.76% (2008: 6.15%) per annum. The
remaining bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest ranged from Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered
Rate + 1.75% to Best Lending Rate + 0.75% (2008: from
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) + 1.25% to
LIBOR + 1.75%) per annum ranging from 1.08% to 6%
(2008: 1.71% to 11%).

Other bank loans of the Group comprise of: (a) an
amount of approximately HK$70,642,000 (2008:
HK$147,198,000) drawn under a term loan facility
secured by a floating charge over the assets of the
Company, and by share mortgages of the issued capital
and floating charges over the assets of the wholly owned
subsidiaries, Sound Hong Kong Limited and NewOcean
Shenzhen Energy Investment Limited; (b) an amount of
approximately HK$23,347,000 (2008: HK$4,958,000)
drawn under a term loan facility guaranteed by
the Company; (c) an amount of approximately
HK$81,774,000 (2008:nil) drawn under a short term loan
facility for PRC companies guaranteed by the Company;
and (d) an amount of approximately HK$13,629,000
(2008: nil) drawn under a term loan facility secured
by fixed charge over the assets of Shenzhen Baorun
Liquefied Petroleum Gas Company Limited.

As at December 31, 2008, bank overdrafts carried
interest at market rate ranged from 2.96% to 5.28% per
annum.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in
currencies which are not the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

R2009F12 A31H
R2008F12 A31H

As at December 31, 2009
As at December 31, 2008

29. fE®R(E)

$R1T715 7L W B 3P 491,511,037,000
770 (2008 & : 838,081,000/ 7T) B E
Bfas HEHFEFEE1.76% (2008
F:6.15%) AR —FRNEE- BT
ZIRITIER A EBHEEK - HEF
RAEBRBRITAEFRE+1.75% EHE
BE FRFE+0.75% (2008 F : fm H iR
TRIZERB +1.25% = M BIETRER
B +1.75%) © 7 F1.08% £ 6% (2008
FAT71% 2 11%) ©

AEBEZHEMETEREFE@—
H #970,642,0007% JT(2008 4 :
147,198,000/ 7T ) AR R Bl 2 B E 1E
FENRB Z EBESREE o WLEFIRA
2EMBARNERBBRARRIG
CRIDEREBR AR ZEEIEZE
%8 MAZE QAR ZEEITIREIER
- (b)#723,347,0005 TT(2008 4 :
4,958,000 70) Z EHEREE - I
AARBIEAERA  QBREXRAA
ERZPBRAREHERBERIZY
81,774,000 7T (2008 £F : %) & (d) —
I8 #713,629,000 7% Jt(2008 & : # ) A
FITMEBRRER AR ZEEERT
BB EHEREE -

R2008F 12 A31 B @ SRITE L 25
RENTHFE2.96%FE5.28% °

AEEZERAFHEEEERNER
W E%IE  FHOT

usb EUR
RT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
T8 T/8TT
1,943,114 -
1,329,568 72,214
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30. Share Capital

30. B&=®

Number
of shares Amount
Bin & B &8
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &R EE &0.176 7T 2 i@ A%
(2008: HK$0.10 each) (20084 : FA%0.10/47T)
Authorised share capital: JEERRA
At January 1, 2008, MR20085F1H1H  2008F &
December 31, 2008 and 200912 A31H
2009 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share BEIT R AR IR :
capital:
At January 1, 2008 R2008%F181H 481,676,687 48,168
Issue of shares due to open NRABSMETZIRG
offer (Note a) (Ktita) 481,676,687 48,168
At December 31, 2008 R2008%F12 A31H 963,353,374 96,336
Issue of shares due to placing AL &S AT T Z %D
(Note b) (Bt5b) 192,500,000 19,250
At December 31, 2009 200912 A31H 1,155,853,374 115,586
Notes: Biat -
(@) On October 13, 2008, 481,676,687 shares of HK$0.10 (a) P 2008F10H13H M & H %
each were issued by way of open offer at a subscription EFATROIB T RBERIT
price of HK$0.3 per share. These new shares rank pari 481,676,687 i & AR A 1E0.1078 7T 2
passu in all respects with other shares in issue. fefn e ZEHWMMHNRS T EmEHME
BT ZRNZRREHAL
(b)  On December 9, 2009, 192,500,000 shares of HK$0.1 (b) P2009F12H9R ' MEEFKRERK

each were issued by way of placing at a placing price of
HK$1.0 per share. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with other shares in issue.

1.078 7T 2 Bt & {8 2 17 192,500,000 A%
BROABIL BN - ZFERMHNET
EEEME HITIRO Z B RFHA -
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31. Share-based Payment Transactions

Equity-settled share option scheme:

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on June 18, 2003,
the Company adopted an share option scheme (“Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the
Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company,
may at their discretion grant options to participants to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms of the Option Scheme. The subscription
price shall be a price determined by the directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of offer for grant of options,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing
price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for grant of options;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share. The total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue. Based on
the 1,155,853,374 shares (2008: 963,353,374 shares) in
issue as at December 31, 2009 and 32,582,284 options
(2008: 32,582,284 options) outstanding under the Option
Scheme, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 115,585,337 shares (2008: 96,335,337
shares).

31.

LI BBz H
s MR

RIEARRQFN2003F6 18 BT
RREFHNASAEABZEBRZER W &
UNGIES R 8 e i -3 2
1) -

BREFSZEZEMNANES &
8 - fEFRKEFELHEERTUER
B3k - RIBERES - AARESFS
AT B S M 28 E R T 0 R IRE R &
ERRE AR R 2 BARE - REE
AHREZTET  TBEROHREDLET
BREZBWEAARSH)  BH
BT HRERATRZ BRI TE
(W BEEREETEREZ AR5 ER S
B BOEBMIFEARERTHRZF
BHWHE: RO ABEURSE S
) 2EITEBREFNS RAERE
R E A AR A AT B AT I B AR M S T
BITZROBE  TEBBAAQRE %
IR 2 10% ° 3K 20094 12 A 31 B
Z B %17 I 5 1,155,853,374 f% (2008
£ : 963,353,374 /% ) & B& P AE T B P
i A& 17 i 232,582,284 13 (2008 4F :
32,582,284 10 )R HEFTE - NARIE
R 8 AR A BT 2R 2
PRSI EI TR - AR E) A T EAT
2R EEE LTS HA 115,585,337
A% (2008 £ : 96,335,337 f%) °
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31. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when
aggregated with shares issued and issuable (including
exercised and outstanding options and the options
cancelled) under any option granted to the same
participant under the Option Scheme or any other share
option scheme within any 12 month period, must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to time.

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the
option for a certain period before exercising the option
save as determined by the board of directors of the
Company and provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the
option but in any event the option period should not go
beyond 10 years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be
made within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the
Company.

New Share Option Scheme

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options granted under the Option Scheme held
by employees (including directors) and movements in
such holdings during the two years ended December 31,
2009:

31.

LI B ERZIH (&)

E ERAR K B AR R AT B S () L fh R A
AERT2EEZERNEREETZE
BOIRAITEITZEOGEE (BEETT
FERARITEZBERE)EETER - RN
Ef 12 @A RER2EERER 2 BRE
g hzmaRBEE T ERBBTEHE
BIT21% °

BARBERZERTE RNEX LB
MESN - WEMHRTE AR ABRITEER
R ABRE—REE -

THREPAREARAFAEFENRELER
BRI E 2 EMHE EREAER
T BRESEISEBARHKENAR
HAEET 10 FF ARG -

ERAMERERE  ©ARELA
HI#E 5t28 H A A A 2 A 1 2 1.008
TC IERIAR N ERE -

L L 48 U
TREBEARRIRBEMBRETEET

EBE(BEEE)NEZ 20094 12 A 31
BIEMEFEE 255 R ESHBENR
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31.

Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued) 31. LR BERZZH(Z)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued) MR (Z)
2009 —EThE

Number of
share options
outstanding at

1.1.2009 and
12.31.2009
#2009
Date Exercisable Exercise 1B1H& 20095
Option type of grant Vesting period period price 12A31HE %
TRRE AR BiBAY BEE T{ER THEE TEZWEERE
HK$
JBIT
2006A 5.15.2006 5.16.2006 to 6.17.2006 to 0.625 14,910,537
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
5.16.2006F 6.17.2006F
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
2006B 6.16.2006 — 6.17.2006 to 0.625 17,671,747
12.31.2015
6.17.2006F
12.31.2015

32,582,284
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31. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

31. LR BERZIH &)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued) MR (Z)
2008 k-1 J 18- 4

Number of share options

MRRERE
Outstanding Adjusted  Outstanding
at 1.1.2008 on 10.13.2008 at 12.31.2008
Date Vesting Exercisable  Exercise #2008 #2008 20085
Option type of grant period period price 1A1H 10A13H 12A31H
BERESN REANY BER fTiER TR HRITE AE HERITE
HK$ (Note)
BT (Hi:z)
2006A 5.15.2006 516.2006 to  6.17.2006 to 0.625 13,500,000 1,410,537 14,910,537
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
5.16.2006% 6.17.2006%
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
2006B 6.16.2006 = 6.17.2006 to 0.625 16,000,000 1,671,747 17,671,747
12.31.2015
6.17.2006%
12.31.2015
29,500,000 3,082,284 32,582,284
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31.

Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)
New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options held by the directors
included in the above table are as follows:

Outstanding

31. LR BERZIH &)
MARA MR BI(2)

ERAEBEESRA ZEREFRD N

Lapsed Outstanding

at beginning Adjusted on during at ending
of the year 10.13.2008 the year of the year
REMEEK #2008 RER RELBER
fTEz®E 10A13HAE E3 TEZHAE

(Note)

(Hiit)

1.1.2009 to 1.1.2009F

12.31.2009 12.31.2009 17,671,747 - - 17,671,747
1.1.2008 to 12.31.2008 1.1.2008%12.31.2008 16,000,000 1,671,747 — 17,671,747

Note: The number and the exercise price of options which
remained outstanding have been adjusted due to open
offer of shares in the Company with effect from October
183, 2008. The exercise price per share was adjusted from
HK$0.69 to HK$0.625.

There was no share option granted for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Kiaz: 2008£F10ﬁ135t HRAEAF

ARABETRABTRNG  WER

TT@%H%&Z%IE&fﬂ%fﬁe{’ﬁﬁi%ﬁ

B BRITEEZHR0IETHESR
0625/%71:

HZE 2009 2008412 A 31 BHIE&FE
I R B AR E o
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32. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the year and prior reporting year:

32. EERIF

FARBEZ2HYE  AEESHER
ZETERE(EE) MABESHIT

Accelerated Other
tax Tax intangible
depreciation losses assets
MEREHE REGR 2 HUERRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET FHET
At January 1, 2008 20081 H1H 12,151 (1,930) 3,958 14,179
(Credit) debit to profit/  RARFEIEZ
loss for the year (ABR) S8R (1,559) 363 (587) (1,783)
Effect of change in tax =~ BiRE 2 F 2
rate (197) 1 — (186)
Exchange adjustments [ & 35 672 - 564 1,236
At December 31, 2008  1A2008F12H31H 11,067 (1,556) 3,935 13,446
(Credit) debit to profit/ ~ RAREEEZ
loss for the year (ABR) S8R (1,804) 366 (817) (2,255)
Acquisitions g 5,850 — 868 6,718
Exchange adjustments &5 7% 18 - 70 88
At December 31, 2009  1KA2009F12H31H 15,131 (1,190) 4,056 17,997

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

AR AER S 2B % R TEF B 4%
DT -

Deferred tax assets REFIAE B
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAGE

HK$’°000 HK$’000
F#ET T
1,190 1,656
(19,187) (15,002)

(17,997) (13,446)
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32. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$192,784,000 (2008: HK$103,185,000) available for
offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$6,331,000
(2008: HK$8,556,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to remaining balances of
approximately HK$186,453,000 (2008: HK$94,629,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$3,718,000
(2008: HK$5,803,000) will be expired before year 2012
(2008: year 2011). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$11,512,000 (2008: HK$8,080,000) in respect of
accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$57,161,000 (December 31, 2008: HK$16,566,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

32.

BIERIF (Z)

REIRIKR + NEE BT 0] E KRR
& ) 2 AR ENR IR IE BB A A& 192,784,000
76 7T (2008 4F : 103,185,000/ 7T) ° 2L
496,331,000 7T (2008 4F : 8,556,000 7%
TO)ERELTIBEEE - HRARRETEE
B 1% 2 % R - 80 48 5E 54 T 45 &R
#9186,453,0007%8 JT(20084F : 94,629,000/
TORERIRIER A EA 2 © 2% 493,718,000
76 7T (2008 4F : 5,803,00078 7T ) Z AR HERR
FRIBEIE 5 2012 6 (2008 F : 2011 4F)
AUERMm o EfthE5 18RI AEpR HR 45 o

RERBR  BAMEHRBFES - K
SEARHNEREZEL11,612,00078
7.(2008 £F : 8,080,000/8 7T ) ° B AR
REAIMAAIRE R ZRABHEAR
IR R ERRBUR A Z ATREME T A - R

B S HNE R ZREDETHEA

BRIEFRRMMEEE - B20084F1 A 1H
#B - PR B A A BT BRE 2 i A T E A
2R E D IRBESTEINR o AEBE W E
MIEETAREB AR Z R AF 28
B 2= 58 457,161,000/ 7T (2008 4 12
A 318 :16,566,000/8 7t ) AR 4 BT 15
WENFHRELERIBEME - AR A
EEAIESEO TR EE RN mA
TR R fe N2 A A] RS R B ] o
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33. Obligation for Put Option to Minority 33. BFMEARLHBRGEZ

Shareholder of a Subsidiary

Pursuant to an agreement dated July 1, 2007 (the
“Agreement”) entered between a wholly owned
subsidiary, Qingxin NewOcean Transportation Company
Limited (“Qingxin NewOcean”) and the minority
shareholder of BINMBEMABRAA ([2F])
(“MI™), the MI granted an option to Qingxin NewOcean
to acquire the 10% equity interest from the MI at a
consideration of approximately RMB4,500,000 for the
period from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2009. In addition,
Qingxin NewOcean has granted an option to the MI to
sell the 10% equity interest to Qingxin NewOcean at a
consideration of approximately HK$5,103,000 (equivalent
to RMB 4,500,000) from the period from July 1, 2009
to July 31, 2009 (“Put Option”). The obligation of the
Put Option was recorded as current liabilities as at
December 31, 2008. Qingxin NewOcean exercised the
Put Option on June 30, 2009 and the MI did not agree
the pre-agreed consideration. Qingxin NewOcean has
commenced to re-negotiate the consideration with Ml
and no agreement has been reached up to the date of
this report.

Pursuant to the Agreement, starting from January 1,
2008, the MI sub-contracting the 10% operating right
to Qingxin NewOcean, thus 2% was fully operated by
Qingxin NewOcean. Qingxin NewOcean is responsible
for the daily operation of Z# and accountable for all
liabilities and obligations arising from any agreements
and contracts entered into the name of £Z# and the
operating losses, if any. Qingxin NewOcean is entitled
to 100% of the results of Z#. The M| was entitled to a
fixed sum of sub-contracting fee payable by the Qingxin
NewOcean. The sub-contracting fee paid to the MI was
approximately HK$680,000 (2008: HK$671,000) for the
year ended December 31, 2009.

R

RIBBEHN G EERERAREFHE
FEDEEMNTEERRABR AR E2
E)Z2LPHEBEER(DHBE ) K 2007
F1RA1B&EFT z2mz((HBE]) - P&
IR IR B F % B Al 72007 F7 A 1
HZ2009F6 A30HEIRE  MWHAR
¥ 4,500,000 TR EBEWIE10% = - B
& BB e R D HARE A 2009
F7A1BE2009% 7 A31 HEIA @ #
10% 125 A#9 5,108,000 B L (FEAR
¥ 4,500,000 7T) B E TR %8 ([ 3R
SHAE ) - A2008F 12 A31 B » &%
BEFWEEAIERBDEE - BHENE
B R 2009F 6 A30 BT RIE#E - M
LEBRRIWTRESLAFTIHBEZRE -
BB E AR EVERRENGE
RE - MEZEAIRE BE AR ER

E

RIEWZE - H2008F1 A1 8B#E B
SZHBRLEBRRABBTZ10% @ 8
WEERBENGINEEEEE - B %
FEBAEZENHEKERBENEE
BEFRI ZEMBRIEOTEENE
EREAREEBSEBIE) - BHME%
MEHEBI100%MEE - VEBREZH
BSBTESENZEEEARER - &
Z2009F12A31BILFE T F
DEIR R 2 A B & B % A680,000/8 T
(2008 % : 671,000/ 7T) °
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

For the year ended December 31, 2009

34.

On October 1, 2009, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in %% for cash consideration and
related expenses of approximately HK$37,140,000.
The acquisition had been accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately

HK$4,538,000.

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the
goodwill arising, were as follows:

WETREzE

KRR E AR

R 2009F 10818 -
37,140,000 L 2 B & KB KBRS 1
s o ZIBWEE LA
SHEEEAR - AZERBEEZHE
24975 4,538,000/ 7T °

HE2009F 1231 HILEE

£ B U D

REXGHAWEBZ FEERALEEZH
2T

Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
before
combinations Fair value
SHtRI R EE adjustments Fair value
ZIRE{E DNFEEAE SF{H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FEIT
Net assets acquired: FriS & E -
Property, plant and R YN
equipment 6,774 15,800 22,574
Prepaid lease payment for T2 RN HEE IR
land 6,741 7,600 14,341
Other intangible asset HEtmpEE — 3,470 3,470
Inventories FE 432 — 432
Trade debtors FEULE SRR IR 178 = 178
Other debtors, deposits and HibEU R £ 4
prepayments NIE IR 1,315 = 1,315
Bank balances and cash RITHS ﬁ%&fﬁi 1,635 = 1,635
Trade creditors JERTE SRR (3,118) — (8,118)
Other creditors and accrued H il B BER &
charges FERTERIA (1,507) - (1,507)
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIBAE = (6,718) (6,718)
12,450 20,152 32,602
Goodwill (RS 4,538

37,140
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2009 (Continued)

Total consideration satisfied by:

34. WAEMELR(E)

HBFE2009F12A31 HIEFEE(Z)

RREUTIIEE

HK$’000

FET

Cash Be 37,140
Deposit paid (Note) Bftite (4:2) (16,313)
20,827

Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition for the

REE2009F 12 A31 HIEFE - B

year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows: BAREAZIRSREFEEIT :
2009
—ETAF
HK$°000
FET
Cash consideration paid (Note) BENBERE (Ht) (20,827)
Bank balances and cash acquired Frfg 2 RITHEH LIRS 1,635
(19,192)

Note: During the year ended December 31, 2009, a cash
consideration of approximately HK$16,313,000 was
prepaid for the acquisition of &% and the amount was
disclosed as other asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2008.

Hiat - ’R2009F 12 A31HIEFE  EFEN K
16,313,000 TER K EX B 2B &
RE  BE<£TEE RK20084 12 A 31
AILEFEZHGRAMBRARAEER
HMEE o
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34.

35.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2009 (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of &% was
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distribution of the Group’s LPG in the market and
the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination. In addition, X% owned several LPG
stations close to the LPG terminal owned by #/& (%8) ,
in the opinion of the directors, this acquisition would
enhance logistic efficiency and improve the market share
in Guangdong region.

74 contributed approximately HK$18,713,000 to the
Group’s revenue and the Group’s profit before taxation of
approximately HK$785,000 for the period from the date
of acquisition to December 31, 2009. If the acquisition
had been completed on January 1, 2009, total group
revenue for the period would have been approximately
HK$6,515,000,000, and profit before taxation would
have been approximately HK$158,000,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on January
1, 2009, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

34.

35.

WA B AR (&)

#HE2009F12A31 BILEE(E)

WEEXBMEEZEHE  RARED
BoEARERERER LN R A G
BRIEHKREEELE 2 HR MR - U
Sh - KBHEABEARCRMRY - X B
IR 8(KE) A 2 BAL RIS A M
AT o BRI 058 MR R R
WehZEBERIER 2 TIHEE X

» U B B H 22009412 A31H It
HE X2AAEE 2 W= RY
18,713,000 7L * W AR EE 2 K
AT Y ) &5 2R #9 785,000 7 7T © i W& E
R2009F1 A1H K AIAEER
HAR 2 i e M B Bt AT s A 8 9 Bl 49 B
6,515,000,0007% T K& #9158,000,000
BT BEEAREHRBECR WA
WEN 200941 A1 B R 2 ANEEE

FRAT SRS REERE BT IR
FRYERREAE 2 TEM -
BRAR

MR 20094 K2008412 A31H » K&
B EERHKARBE o
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36. Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

36.

HE®E
FREMEREREA
RERPR - AEBERETATHEL

LHEFRAXNZBRELEAEX
H BEIRMT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 7,126 55,604
In the second to fifth year “ERFAN (BIEEREME)

inclusive 13,828 102,808

Over five years BiEhasF 3,205 4,660

24,159 163,072

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals
payable by the Group for office premises and LPG
vessel. As at December 31, 2009, rentals are fixed for an
average of 3 years (2008: 5 years). The lease agreement
for LPG vessel was terminated in 2009, the details as
disclosed in note 22(b).

KEHERAE N EBHEANESHEB R
RERBIERMERN 2HE - R2009
F12H31H - HeBEHHFIHAIF
(20084 : 5%F) - Rib@MzHE W=
2009 F 42 1E - 5 BEFF B MY #E22(b)

141
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37. Other Commitments

38.

37.

Hfth & iz

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&r FET
Capital expenditure contracted ERTRERRGE B REREE 2
for but not provided in BARFAT 2 AT :
the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:
Purchase of gas plant and I8 B B R i2s
machinery 10,169 1,423
Capital contribution to the mEtENEEE (Mit22(a)
Associate Company
(Note 22 (a)) 68,111 -
Retirement Benefits Plans 38. BHFiEFIEtR

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group and each employee employed in Hong Kong are
required to make a contribution of 5% on the employees’
monthly relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,000 per person.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute fixed percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

AEBRERBB2EBAERERR
HEsE A EEE - ZFEZEE
EAEEEEDFFTE * HIEsEAUE
sHAESH - ARBRRESERAZE
BEEGRZEEEEEH WA Z5%E
HHER - FARKERAEE A1,000%8
=

AEERTERBARZEEZ2MNTH
BFEE 2 RNEE - ZFHBAR
RERABRKREHEINEERAZEE
EEBIESR o AEBEHR IR 5 812 ME—
BERFELIEEMRRK -
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39. MEALZS

39. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

FAANEEEBEATET TR
5

Sales to a jointly controlled entity [mk[El#ZE 4| &F oL sh e
Rental expenses paid to YR TEEcHeRAX
Shum Ho, Neo (Note) (HzE)

HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx T
5,145 204
584 456

Note:

Shum Ho, Neo is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung and Ms. Tong
Shiu Ming.

On May 16, 2007, Sound Management Services Limited,
entered into an office tenancy agreement with Shum
Ho, Neo for the use of office premises provided by
Shum Ho, Neo located on 20th Floor, Times Tower, 393
Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$38,000 per
calendar month for a period of one year. On May 16,
2008, the agreement was renewed for one year to May
15, 2009 with the same terms. On May 16, 2009, the
agreement was renewed for one year to May 15, 2010 at
HK$55,000 per calendar month for a period of one year
commencing May 16, 2009.

Save as disclosed above and note 25, there were no
other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the year.

LTS DR ERENBR L ZF o

R2007E5 16 H > TEEBERBE
AR EZSETRAETALY  UA
738,000 T A ZEU RN BB EF
HEBIQBHFEMERFP L20EZHA
=Y - BB B AR —F - R2008F
5H16H * AR R KR 4EH —
& = 200945 A15H ° R 200945 A
168 ' ZHEEBEH —FE2010F5
HA15H © 20095816 H 5 — &F
R - A 2% 55500087 °

BRIAERMIGE25 TR ESN - FARHE
MEALTTESEARS  REKETA
BRESHEMZEANER -
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39. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other
members of key management during the year was as
follows:

REALXHE)
FEEEARZHH

AEEHTEETRHEMTIEEEARLZ
FEanT

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHETT FETT

Short-term benefits y SRR 8,522 6,484
Contribution to retirement EIREH TR

benefits schemes 81 60

8,603 6,544

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

EERTREEABZHFMAFMES
SRBEAARRRTEBEETE -



iy
ik ~

-

‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
sr e B IS R M

}lL ——
-1
Annual Report 2009 —ZZNEFR

For the year ended December 31, 2009

BHZ2009F 12 A31 HIFFZE

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 40. ELAFZEEMELFHE
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 7K A A R 2009 &2 2008 F 12 A31H 2
December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: FEMBRRERDAT :

Proportion of
Place of Issued and  nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up  issued/registered
registration/ share capital/ capital held
operation Class of registered capital by the Company

Name of subsidiary B, M,/ share held BEROTRBE FAFMBERT/ Principal activities
[ NGEA BENR FrisRipERI Bx/dMEs EMEFEERG FERE

2009 2008
“BBNE _TT)\F

EMGEEFAMLIBRAR PRC* Registered RMB5,000,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of
(“BFY”) e capital AK5,000,0007T LPG
EMBEAR AR IBRAR HEA HERDHERILR
([B=#))
NewOcean Resources Singapore Ordinary SGD100 100 100  Sale and distribution of
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. HsE LER 100%T 0% T LPG
HERDHERILR
Shenzhen Baorun Liquefield  PRC * Registered RMB15,000,000 100 100  Sale and distribution of
Petroleum Gas Company ~ #E * capital AR¥15,000,0007 LPG
Limited &R HERDHERILR

AMERRRARAT

Sound Hong Kong Limited British Virgin Ordinary USD1 100 100 Investment holding
SRR ERAR Islands LaER EFF RAER
ERENS
Sound Agents Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Sale and distribution of
TAREABRAR B LRER 28T LPG and electronic
products

HERDERRRETER
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40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 40. EAFZEEMBLFES£)
Company (Continued)

Proportion of
Place of Issued and  nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up  issued/registered
registration/ share capital/ capital held
operation Class of registered capital by the Company

Name of subsidiary HMAiI, M/ share held BRTRMBE FLFMBEERT/ Principal activities
HELARER EEE FRisRAEA k& /HMEs HREIEERA FERE

2009 2008
“EENE _TT)\F

Sound Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Trading of electronic
MBEXERAA B LRk 28T products
ERETEm
Sound Management Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Providing management
Limited BB LR 28T services to group
MSERREER AR companies
mEEARRAER RS
Sound Technologies Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Trading of electronic
BRI BRAT & L@k 28T products
EEETEm
Qingxin Yong Long Gas and ~ PRC * Registered RMB4,280,000 80 80  Sale and distribution of
Chemical Company Limited F * capital ARE4,280,0007T LPG
(“Yong Long”) (Note a) &R HERDHERILR

BRFKEMBRAA]
(Tx&]) (Hita)

TSR R R EBR AT PRC * Registered HK$6,600,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of
R capital 6,600,000/ 7T LPG
HER HERDHERILR
EMZ B eRasRAR PRC * Registered HK$1,400,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of
7 capital 1,400,000/57C LPG
FER HERDERILR
BMERR B RAR PRC * Registered HK$1,600,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of
R capital 1,600,00077C LPG

AT AR HERDHRIR
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40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 40. EAFZEEMBLFES£)
Company (Continued)

Proportion of
Place of Issued and  nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up  issued/registered
registration/ share capital/ capital held
operation Class of registered capital by the Company
Name of subsidiary EMeii &M, share held ERITRBE ELTRMBERFT/ Principal activities

HELRER EEnR Gt A E] k% /HERRE HERRSEERH FERE

2009 2008
—BENE —TT)\F

PRC * Registered RMB500,000 100 100  Sale and distribution of
FE * capital AR#500,0007T LPG
(Note #fztb) AR HERAERILR
ERENEMRARAR PRC * Registered RMB500,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of
([EEmE]) R capital AR#500,0007T LPG
(Note Hiztc) HEA HERDHRILR
8 (58) PRC Registered USD29,150,000 100 100  Sale and distribution of
e capital 29,150,000% 7T LPG
HftEx HERDHERILR
B PRC * Registered RMB?7,755,100 90 90  Sale and distribution of
R capital AEHT 755,1007T LPG
Aftax HERAHRILR
BN MR ARAR PRC * Registered RMB2,000,000 90 90  Sale and distribution of
] * capital AEK#2,000,0007T LPG
AR HERMERILR
EESEERRBRAR PRC * Registered RMB990,000 100 100  Sale and distribution of
R capital AK#990,0007T LPG
Aftax HERDHERILR
Baifuyang Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100 100  Sale and distribution of
Offshore Limited B LER 100,000 LPG and electronic
BE R R RS ERAR 100,0002M T products
HERDHERLERETER
FEnB RN AR AR PRC * Registered USD10,000,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of
e’ capital 10,000,000 %7 LPG

AMER HERDHRICR
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40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/
registration/

operation Class of

Name of subsidiary B/ #M,/ share held
HEATER BRI PSRz {4 R

Rise Smart Industrial Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary

RHEEXERAA B TR

iz PRC * Registered
e capital

Domestic — invested enterprises
NERE
Wholly-owned foreign enterprises

2ENELZE

40. FLRFZEEMBLTIER &)

Issued and
fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital

ERITREME
B*/HERRES

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

RMB5,015,700
AERH5,015,7007T

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered
capital held
by the Company
ELFMIFERT/ Principal activities
ERRSEELA TERE

2009

2008

ZESNE TT)\E

100

100

—  Providing management
services to group

companies
WEBARRMERRS

- Sale and distribution of
LPG
HERDERILR
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40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Exc

Pursuant to an agreement entered between BFY and the
minority shareholder of Yong Long, (“PRC Investor”), the
operation of Yong Long was sub-contracted to BFY with
a sub-contracting period of 5 years. The PRC Investor
was entitled to a fixed sum of sub-contracting fee payable
of RMB180,000 per year by BFY. BFY entitled to 100%
of the results of Yong Long during the subcontracting
period.

BM#FE is indirectly held by the Company through
the declarations of trust executed by ZEEJt and 2/
¥ who held the interest in #BJIF1E of 20% and 20%
respectively. The remaining interest in BM#FE is
indirectly held by the Company.

EB#E is indirectly held by the Company through
the declarations of trust executed by &-F4 and 2/
¥ who held the interest in E#E¥E of 20% and 20%
respectively. The remaining interest in BRB#E is
indirectly held by the Company.

ept Sound Hong Kong Limited which is owned

directly by the Company, the above principal subsidiaries

are

owned indirectly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The

above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the

results or assets of the Group. To give details of

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

40. FLFIZEEMBLATIHN 2

(a)

RIBE S F MK EBRRE( R R
BE DRI ZHE  KEZEBKEIN
HEBEEFE  INHEAESTF - FRRE
EAEBBEEFEMNZETINAE
B(Z & AR¥180,0007T) ° RN
IR - BE A KEE100% 24 -

TRIN & E B TT & B/ NSRS
ZIERERAEAARARERSR - £
FHERBNF A BN S 20% 2
o BMNFEH T 2 s h AR M
BRA -

ERHEEEBS THREPFHETL
ZIERERAEAARARERSR - 2
FHERE N EEBIIE20%H#E
e BRHEH T 2 Eam A AR M
BRA -

BRIEBEEBRARSARFERER
Sh - bt & = KB A R AR EfE
BHWA -

& M B & B F AR A R s A AR
FAIREEEBEES o

ERFINEZER/IBFELAEER
BABEZARAMNBAR - EERR
JIHEMH B AR 2 EREBNITE -
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41.

42,

Derivative Financial Instruments

Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts

are summarised as follows:

Notional amount

£ 54

2009
20094

Buy USD170,837,058
B A170,837,058% T

2008
20084

Buy USD55,084,000
B A55,084,0003 7T
Buy EURG,288,000
= A6,288,0008 T

Maturity
b ]S

April 7, 2010 to December 23, 2010
20104 A7HZE 2010412 A23H

January 2, 2009 to April 16, 2009
20091 H2B=2009F4H16H
July 10, 2009

2009 7H10H

Event After the Reporting Period

On April 8, 2010, a subscription agreement has been
signed between the Group and an independent third
party (the “Subscriber”), the Subscriber agreed to
acquire 10% equity interest of a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company for a consideration of HK$40,000,000.
The amount was settled through an interest bearing
refundable deposit of HK$40,000,000 paid by the
Subscriber before year ended December 31, 2009, and
was recorded as current liability in other creditors and

accrued charges (note 28).

41.

42,

TTEMEBIR

SNEEREIA #) 2 T2 IR T

Exchange rates
Rk

RMB/USD6.61 to RMB/USD6.82
6.61ARYE XL E6.82 AR T

RMB/USD6.45 to RMB/USD7.11
B.AARE ETXETNARKE E7T
RMB/EUR10.33

10.33 AR BT

EBRPEER

R2010F4 A8H » KA R HEIFH
=H(REFDELRENZ  RES
AEKEARGZENBRRZ10%
f% # - {8 &40,000,000/8 T » %%
KIAFEBRE T R E E2009F12 B
SIALEFENYN 2 B RERS
40,000,000/ 705 18 + W A E fib JE
ERMEFERALEEARE A G M
28) °
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Results E -
For the year ended December 31,
HE12A31AILERE
2008 2007 2006
AT R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue YA 6,483,119 6,158,614 3,890,225 2,387,531 1,615,479
Profit before taxation BR A A& A 155,093 54,122 52,559 43,951 30,243
Taxation (charge) credit A () WA (42,642) (1,211) (2,105) 179 3,667
Profit for the year FERE A 112,451 52,911 50,454 44130 33,910
Attributable to: e &7 :
Equity holders of the AARIZERFAA
Company 112,451 52,911 50,454 44130 35,702
Minority interests DR RS - — = = (1,792)
112,451 52,911 50,454 44130 33,910
Earnings per share FREF
Basic (in HK cents) ER (L) 11.53 8.48 9.52 9.16 7.41
Diluted (in HK cents) #5E (B 11.53 8.48 9.49 916  N/ATEMA

151
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Assets and Liabilities

RERAR

At December 31,

"®12A31H
2008 2007
—“EE\F  —FELF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets HWEAE 4,226,442 2,700,263 2,319,532 1,461,813 832,644
Total liabilities mafs (3,210,225) (1,982,655) (1,795,689)  (1,014,332) (442,181)
1,016,217 717,608 523,843 447,481 390,463
Equity attributable to ARAZERFBA
equity holders of the FE(R &
Company 1,014,690 716,077 513,130 445,950 388,932
Minority interests DER RS 1,527 1,531 10,713 1,531 1,531
1,016,217 717,608 523,843 447,481 390,463
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